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Flying Under the Radar of Law EnforcementFlying Under the Radar of Law Enforcement
Closing Loans Legally and EthicallyClosing Loans Legally and Ethically

Lathan & Barbare
Attorneys at Law

MARTINDALE-HUBBELL Bio.

• 108 Edinburg Court, Greenville, SC

• Ronald Barbare – Born 1951, Admitted 1976
– University of South Carolina, JD
– BV Peer Review Rated

• Ray Lathan – Admitted 1970
– University of South Carolina, JD



The “Practice”

1 400 t 1 600 Cl i Y• 1,400 to 1,600 Closings per Year

• Two Lawyers – Lathan and Barbare

• Busy Support Staff

• Well known well liked• Well known, well liked 

THE CRIME

• The Lawyers pled guilty to one count of 
i l i 18 U S C S i 1010 F lviolating 18 U.S.C. Section 1010 – a Felony

– Criminalizes the publication of false HUD-1 
Statements

• The lawyers falsely certified that they received 
cash from borrowers in amounts reported on 
HUD-1 Settlement Statements when they did 

t i th hnot receive the cash. 



Federal Plea Agreement

• U.S. Attorney: Strom Thurmond, Jr.

• Indictment: By Information – “False 
Certifications that the Defendants received 
cash at settlement from certain borrowers in 
amounts reported on HUD-1 Settlement 
Statements . . . as the Defendants well knew, 
the Defendants did not receive said cash from 
said borrowers ”said borrowers.

• Plea: $5,000 fine and no Pin-Stripes 

South Carolina Bar

• 6 Month Suspension for Lathan and Barbare
after Guilty Plea to Federal Felony and 
admission to the Bar of numerous violationsadmission to the Bar of numerous violations 
of Ethical Rules, including:

– Rule 4.1(a)(in the course of representing a client, 
lawyer shall not knowingly make a false statement 
of material fact or law to a third person).

– Rule 8.4(b)(lawyer shall not commit criminal act that 
fl t d l l ’ h treflects adversely on lawyer’s honesty, 

trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer in other 
respects). 



Firm’s Procedure for Closing Loans

Parlegal Multi-Tasking

P l l th i i l b t• Paralegal was the principal go-between

• Paralegal reviewed lender’s closing 
instructions and Contract for Sale.

• Paralegal prepared HUD-1 and other closing 
documents.

• Paralegal prepared disbursement worksheet 
for incoming funds and disbursements. 

Firm Procedures for Closing Loans 
Attorney’s Role

• Reviewed closing documents

• Attended and supervised the closing

• Provided instructions for conclusion of 
transactions

• Generally no communications with the sellerGenerally, no communications with the seller 
prior to closing

• Generally, no direct communications between 
the firm and borrowers prior to closing 



Cromer Company Transactions

• Cromer was a real estate developer selling 
mobile home and land packages to buyers.

• Paralegal would prepare the HUD-1 based on 
preliminary information and forward it  to the 
lender.

– Line 303 would reflect a certain amount of cash 
received from the Borrower.

• Subsequently, the Cromer employee would 
d i th t th t h d b idadvise that these amounts had been paid 

directly to Cromer.

• HUD-1 would be revised deleting the “cash 
from borrower” on line 303 and reducing 
“cash to seller” by a like amount.

Cromer Deals – Bar finds 
Double Trouble

• Borrowers Cash to Close on Line 303 at 
variance with actual receipts and Sellers 
Proceeds on Line 603 at variance with actualProceeds on Line 603 at variance with actual 
disbursements.

– The firm never received “Cash to Close”

• Seller delivers its’ own check to the firm for 
the amount of borrowers “Cash to Close” on 
Line 303. 



The Bar’s View of Cromer

“. . . it now appears that the representations 
made by respondent concerning the y p g
information on lines 303 and 603 of the HUD-
1 statements were incorrect.  The inaccurate 
report had the tendency to cause lenders to 
believe that borrowers had invested money in 
the transactions when, in fact, the borrowers 
had not, and caused the price of the [mobile 
home and land] package to be inflated by the 
amounts shown on line 303 of the HUD-1 
form.”

Stegall’s Gift Wrapped HUD-1

• Stegall “sold” Greene, a mobile home

HUD 1 (Li 303) G ’ h t l• HUD-1 (Line 303) – Greene’s cash to close 
was $18,147.43

• Stegall forgave $18,147.43, but  the 
generosity was not reflected on the HUD-1 
given to the Lender

• Stegall’s kindness continued, the firm cut a 
trust account refund check for $3,000 to 
Greene that was not on the HUD-1.



Stegall Continues to Outwit Firm

• Lathan becomes concerned borrowers were 
not making “cash to close” payments tonot making cash to close  payments to 
Stegall

• Lathan began requiring cashier’s checks for 
“cash to close”

• Stegall delivered cashiers checks to Lathan’s
t ff d BB&T St ll’ b kstaff drawn on BB&T, Stegall’s bank.

• Lathan knew Stegall banked at BB&T

Stegall Deal – “Flip Transaction”

Act One – “Cash Deal”

S ll H d B L t ( St ll• Seller Harper and Buyer Laster (ex-Stegall
employee), close $55,000 sale.  

• HUD-1 shows $55,531.12 as “Cash to Close”

• Barbare is notary and witness on deed 



Stegall Deal – “Flip Transaction”

Act Two – Inflated “Flip Price” 

L t th d L t t• Later, the same day, Laster conveys to 
Greene for $80,000.

– Barbare is notary and witness on deed

• Green’s “cash to close” is $11,735.77; 
balance from unidentified Lender;

• Harper, Seller in Act One, receives 
$55,531.12.

Firm’s “Flip” Accounting

“ . . . Loan proceeds from the lender in the 
second transaction were the only fundssecond transaction were the only funds 
received by [Lathan and Barbare] in both 
transactions”

“A Firm check in the amount of $55,531.12 –
paid out of the second transaction –
represented the “cash from borrower” due inrepresented the cash from borrower  due in 
the first transaction.” 



Firm’s “Flip” Accounting

“ The flip transaction allowed Greene to 
acquire the property only using proceeds fromacquire the property only using proceeds from 
the  loan notwithstanding the fact that the 
HUD-1 sent to the lender indicated Greene 
had contributed $11,735.77 to the 
transaction.”

“. . . Information furnished to the lender in the 
second transaction to be at variance with thesecond transaction to be at variance with the 
disbursements actually made from the firm’s 
trust account. . .”



Bar Finds Goodness in Firm, but not 
in its’ Mobile Home Clients

• No receipt of special financial benefit

• All fees were reasonable and customary

• No allegation either lawyer “deliberately 
sought to assist [others] in a criminal 
undertakings or had knowledge of their 
criminal intent.

• With the advantage of “hindsight”, attorneys 
recognize there were “red flags” 

Accurate HUD-1 – A Crime Buster

“However, submitting HUD-1 Settlement 
Statements to lenders which were at variance 
with receipts and disbursements from the 
Firm’s trust account enabled these people to 
break the law”.



BAR’S CONCLUSION
• The court is troubled by the recent number of 

real estate transactions which have been the 
subject of misleading, fraudulent, and/or 
criminal schemes.  Inaccurate HUD-1 
Settlement Statements and other closing 
documents contribute to these deceptive 
activities.

• According to the parties in this matter, a large 
number of attorneys are not passing closing 
funds through their trust accounts and, at the 

ti t id tif i th f d idsame time, not identifying the funds as paid 
outside of closing on closing documents.  Not 
only does this practice fail to accurately 
record the actual transaction for the buyer and 
seller, but it is misleading to lenders.

S. Carolina Lawyer – “Ethics Watch”

The biggest risk facing the good lawyer is 
the bad client Even work as seeminglythe bad client. Even work as seemingly 
routine and mundane as residential real 
estate closings become tricky when clients 
are less than honest.  Two Greenville law 
partners, Ray Lathan and Ronald Barbare, 
ended up with some bad clients and paid a 
fearsome price.

Professor John Freeman “HUD-1 Misery” in 
Ethics Watch)



HUD-1 COMPARED TO A 
CORAL SNAKE

S ti d thi i llSometimes dangerous things come in small 
packages.  The coral snake, for example, has 
a fearsome bite.  HUD-1s are important 
because they travel from the closing room into 
the stream of commerce where, foreseeably, 
others, such as lenders, will rely upon them.  
Real estate specialists know a HUD-1 is 
probably the most important document in the p y p
closing package.

Professor John Freeman, J.D.

The “Fearsome Price”

• Pled Guilty to violation of Federal Felony -
Paid $5 000 fine and walkedPaid $5,000 fine and walked.

• Civil settlement with Lender for $750,000; 
$575,000 paid by E&O and $175,000 out of 
their own pockets.

• Six Month Bar Suspension



“Fearsome” $750,000 Civil 
Suit Settlement

• Cendant Mortgage v. Greene, et. al.

• Allegations against Lathan and Barbare

– Closing the loan with a HUD-1 statement that was 
inconsistent with the contract for the property, 
including the absence of any genuine down 
payment as required by the contract.

– Making disbursements that were not consistent with 
the HUD-1 statement.

Appendix A to 24 CFR 3500 
Instructions for Completing HUD-1

All Charges Must be on HUD-1

• “This form is to be used as a statement of 
actual charges and adjustments paid by theactual charges and adjustments paid by the 
borrower and the seller . . .”

• “The settlement agent shall complete the 
HUD-1 to itemize all charges.”

• “The settlement agent shall complete the 
HUD 1 t it i ll h h th t bHUD-1 to itemize all charges . . . whether to be 
paid at settlement or outside settlement . . .”

• Charges paid outside of settlement . . . must
be included on the HUD-1 but marked “P.O.C.” 
for “Paid Outside of Closing”



Appendix A to 24 CFR 3500 
Instructions for Completing HUD-1

Items Paid by or on behalf of Borrower

• “Lines 204-209 are used for other items paid 
b b h lf f h Bby or on behalf of the Borrower.
– “Lines 204-209 should be used to indicate any 

financing arrangements or other new loan not listed 
on Line 202.”

– “Lines 204-209 should also be used where the 
Borrower receives a credit from the Seller for closing 
costs . . .” 

Appendix A to 24 CFR 3500 
Instructions for Completing HUD-1

Cash to Close

• “Line 303 must indicate either the  cash 
required from the Borrower at settlement (therequired from the Borrower at settlement (the 
usual case in a purchase transaction), or cash 
payable to the Borrower at settlement (if, for 
example, the Borrower’s cash obligations in 
the transaction or there is a cash-out 
refinance).”



HUD-1 Prohibitions
Assistant US Attorney Gale McKenzie  

• Do not list yourself as the Settlement Agent 
and your office as the Place of Settlement ifand your office as the Place of Settlement if 
someone else is closing the  loan at another 
location.

• Do not substitute dates for the true settlement 
and disbursement dates on either the HUD-1 
or your disbursement sheet.

• Do not enter payoff amounts and parties on 
HUD 1 diff t f t t ll idHUD-1s different from amounts actually paid 
and the parties to whom your checks are 
payable or wire transfers directed.

• Do not pay for “repairs” or “improvements” out 
of loan proceeds without advance written 
permission from the lender.

Do Not Launder Scheme Proceeds

Assistant US Attorney Gale McKenzie  

• Do not disburse closing proceeds other than 
to the seller and prior lien holders to payto the seller and prior lien holders, to pay 
closing costs listed on the HUD-1 and to pay 
back taxes and similar items to clear title.

• In other words, do not launder scheme 
proceeds by making other payments on 
behalf of any party even if such payments are 
di l d th HUD 1 t d b b thdisclosed on the HUD-1, requested by both 
the seller and borrower and supported by 
invoices.



Sample Closing Instructions

• “In accordance with the Real Estate Settlement 
Procedures Act (RESPA), you must comply 
with all provisions of RESPA to complete the p p
HUD-1/1A.”

• “Do not show any credits from seller to buyer 
without consulting our office.”

• “Down payment in cash from borrower must go 
through settlement.  We require documentation 
of ALL funds received by the settlement agent ”of ALL funds received by the settlement agent.

• “All fees and charges on the HUD-1/1A must be 
correct . . . Additionally, the HUD-1 must reflect 
an itemization of all disbursements from the 
Seller’s Proceeds.”

Sample Closing Instructions

• You Are Not Authorized to Close This Loan if:

– We have not received and approved an estimated pp
closing statement.

– There is any change to the original sales contract 
which have not been approved in writing.

– A transaction becomes known to you on or before the 
date of closing that involves the borrower(s) or if you 
have knowledge of a transaction involving the subject 
property in the last 180 days.  Notify the lender, in p p y y y ,
writing, of the additional transaction to verify that it 
has been considered in our loan approval decision.



Signing Certificates of Title for 
Other Attorneys

USA v. Thomas D. Keenum, Sr.

• The Crime: 

– Kennum had unsuspecting attorneys sign false title 
opinions that were used to obtain loans from banks.

• The  Plea:

– Guilty to felony bank fraud 18 U S C 1344Guilty to felony bank fraud 18 U.S.C. 1344

– Imprisonment:  22 months

– Restitution: $1,083,121.41  

Forged Cancellation of Mortgage

USA v. Dwayne G. Deer et. al.

• Dwayne Deer was an attorney from McComb, 
MSMS

• $14.5 Million Mortgage Fraud Scheme

• The Crime: Prepared and filed forged 
cancellations of Deeds of Trust which were 
filed in the land records with various Chancery 
Clerks as evidence that previous loans had C e s as e de ce t at p e ous oa s ad
been paid and the collateral had been 
released free and clear.  



Forged Cancellation of Mortgage

USA v. Dwayne G. Deer et. al.

• The Guilty Plea:

Dwayne Deer Attorney Conspiracy to Commit– Dwayne Deer – Attorney - Conspiracy to Commit 
Bank Fraud – 37 months imprisonment.

– Todd Phillips – Real Estate Investor - Conspiracy to 
Commit Bank Fraud – 51 months imprisonment.

– Dawn Stinson – Legal Secretary – Misprision of 
Felony – 2 Years Probation.

• Law Enforcement

– Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation – Office of 
Inspector General

– Federal Bureau of Investigation

– State District Attorney Dee Bates, McComb, MS

Fraudulently Conveying Property

USA v. Michael E. Earwood

• Michael E. Earwood was an attorney from 
M di MSMadison, MS 

• The Crime:

– Earwood was a minority member of Kinwood
Capital Group, LLC.

– He fraudulently transferred real property owned by 
Kinwood to Northlake Development LLC (whollyKinwood to Northlake Development, LLC (wholly 
owned by Earwood).

• The Plea:

– Guilty to Bankruptcy Fraud

– Bank Fraud Charge Dismissed 



Fraudulently Conveying Property

USA v. Michael E. Earwood

• The Sentence:

– 46 months imprisonment

– $792,228.53 Restitution

• Law Enforcement:

– Federal Bureau of Investigations

– Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation – Office of 
Inspector General 

Escrow Account Fraud
Choice Escrow and Land Title, LLC v. 

BancorpSouth Bank, 2013 WL 1121339. 

Ch i E d L d Ti l k i• Choice Escrow and Land Title kept its escrow 
account at BancorpSouth Bank.

• Choice utilized BancorpSouth’s website to 
initiate wire transfers.

• When setting up the account, BancorpSouth
offered “Dual Controls” o e ed ua Co t o s

• Choice refused the “dual control” option 
because it was a small office and both of the 
approved people were not always in the 
office.



Escrow Account Fraud
Choice Escrow and Land Title, LLC v. 

BancorpSouth Bank, 2013 WL 1121339. 

I N b 2009 Ch i i d• In November 2009, Choice received an 
Underwriting Bulletin from its title insurer 
warning of cyber fraud on attorney escrow 
accounts.

• Choice contacted BancorpSouth about 
protection for this sort of fraud.  

• BancorpSouth again offered dual controls.  
Choice again refused dual controls.

• In 2010 a hacker obtains access to Choice’s 
computer and initiates a $440,000 wire to the 
Republic of Cypress.

Short Sale Fraud
• Undisclosed Payments

– Payments made “outside of escrow” or “off the 
settlement statement” 

• Junior Lienholders

• Short Sale Negotiators

• Flopping 

– Fraudulent low appraisal, other interested buyers 
not disclosed to the short sale lender.

Property is flipped for a higher price shortly after– Property is flipped for a higher price shortly after 
closing.

• Forged Short Sale Estoppel Letters

– Never accept a payoff letter from anyone other than 
the lender being paid off.



Thank you!

Contact

Mississippi Valley Title Insurance Company
R. Bradford Jones
Vice President, Claims Counsel

124 One Madison Plaza, Suite 2100
Madison, MS 39110

Phone: 601.961.4866
Email: bjones@mvt.com

www.mvt.com
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H

Supreme Court of South Carolina.
In the Matter of Ray D. LATHAN, Respondent.

No. 25842.

Submitted June 10,2004.

Decided July 20, 2004.
Order Reinstating Respondent July 27, 2004.

Background: In attorney disciplinary proceeding,
attorney involved in real estate transactions and Of
fice of Disciplinary Counsel (ODC) entered into
agreement for discipline by consent.

Holding: The Supreme Court held that six-month
definite suspension was warranted as discipline by
consent for attorney who admitted knowingly mak
ing false statements of material fact or law to a
third person and failure to disclose a material fact
to a third person when disclosure is necessary to
avoid assisting a criminal or fraudulent act by a cli
ent.

Definite suspension ordered.

West Headnotes

[1] Attorney and Client 45 €=>59.13(3)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k59.1 Punishment; Disposition

45k59.13 Suspension
45k59.13(2) Definite Suspension

45k59.13(3) k. In General. Most
Cited Cases

(Formerly45k58)
Supreme Court would impose six-month defin

ite suspension as discipline by consent for attorney
involved in the closing of real estate transactions
who admitted violating various rules of profession
al conduct, including those regarding failure to
provide competent representation, knowingly mak

Pagel

ing false statements of material fact or law to a
third person, and failure to disclose a material fact
to a third person when disclosure was necessary to
avoid assisting a criminal or fraudulent act by a cli
ent. Appellate Court Rule 407, Rules of
Prof.Conduct, Rules 1.1, 4.1 (a, b).

[2] Attorney and Client 45 €^44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

To ensure their compliance with rules of pro
fessional conduct, attorneys must ensure that costs
and credits in connection with a real estate transac

tion be shown on settlement statement and that set

tlement statement reflect all amounts paid, by
whom paid, and to whom paid.

[3] Attorney and Client 45 €^44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

To ensure their compliance with rules of pro
fessional conduct, attorneys involved in real estate
transactions must ensure that any charges or
amounts paid outside of closing be reflected as such
on settlement statement.

[4] Attorney and Client 45 €=*44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

2013 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.



600 S.E.2d 902

360 S.C. 326, 600 S.E.2d 902

(Citeas:360S.C. 326,600 S.E.2d 902)

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

To ensure their compliance with rules of pro
fessional conduct, attorneys involved in real estate
transactions must have, for all funds exchanged
during closing, a record of method of payment by
parties to transaction, as well as an accounting of
all receipts and disbursements by attorney; attor
ney's records must accurately reflect transaction as
evidenced by settlement statement unless there is
written documentation signed by all parties to the
transaction, including any lender, indicating that
funds were disbursed otherwise.

**903 *327 Henry B. Richardson, Jr., of Columbia,
for the Office of Disciplinary Counsel.

Elizabeth Van Doren Gray, of Sowell, Gray, Stepp
& Laffitte, L.L.C., of Columbia, for respondent.

PER CURIAM:

In this attorney disciplinary matter, respondent
and the Office of Disciplinary Counsel (ODC) have
entered into an Agreement for Discipline by Con
sent pursuant to Rule 21, RLDE, Rule 413,
SCACR. In the agreement, respondent admits mis
conduct and consents to a definite suspension from
the practice of law for a period of not less than four
nor more than twelve months. We accept the agree
ment and definitely *328 suspend respondent from
the practice of law in this state for a six month peri

od, retroactive to his interim suspension. The facts,
as set forth in the agreement, are as follows.

FACTS

Respondent was admitted to practice law in
South Carolina on September 1, 1970. He is a part
ner in the law firm of Lathan and Barbare (Firm)
with his partner Ronald F. Barbare (Partner). Re
spondent and partner are the only two attorneys em
ployed by the Firm.

The Firm's primary practice is the closing of
real estate transactions. The Firm handles approx
imately 1400 to 1600 real estate closings per year.

Page 2

On or about November 19, 2003, respondent
and his partner pled guilty before the United States
District Court for the District of South Carolina to

one count of violation 18 U.S.C. § 1010, a felony.
The information to which respondent pled guilty
provided that he falsely certified that he had re
ceived cash from borrowers in amounts reported on

HUD-1 Settlement Statements he prepared and sub
mitted to the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development when respondent did not
receive the cash.

Because of cooperation with federal authorities
into matters related to the information and to other

investigations, the United States Attorney made a
motion for downward departure. Both respondent
and his partner received favorable recommenda
tions in the pre-sentencing report submitted by the
United States Probation Department. Both respond
ent and his partner were sentenced to pay a fine of
$5,000 as final disposition of their pleas; both have
paid those fines.

Firm's Genera]Procedure for Closing Real Estate
Transactions

The Firm's paralegal was the principal point of
contact between the Firm and the seller. The

paralegal reviewed the lender's instructions and the
contract of sale and prepared**904 closing docu
ments and a balance sheet showing incoming funds
and disbursements. Changes to the transaction were
conveyed by the seller to the paralegal who would
then make *329 pen and ink changes on the Firm's
in-house balance sheet reflecting the changes direc
ted by the seller.

Another Firm employee then prepared checks
for disbursement in accordance with the balance

sheet, including any pen and ink changes prepared
by the paralegal. Thereafter, the paralegal prepared
a class report showing the disbursements made out
of the Firm's trust account in connection with each

transaction.

Respondent or his partner reviewed the various
closing documents, attended the closing with the

2013 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.
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seller and borrower, and gave instructions to the
Firm staff for the conclusion of transactions. Re

spondent or his partner attended and supervised all
closings.

Generally, there were no direct communica
tions between the Firm and the borrowers prior to
closing. In general, neither respondent nor his part
ner had any communications with the seller con
cerning an individual transaction prior to closing.

Cromer Company Transactions
Respondent and his partner served as closing

attorneys in a number of real estate transactions
where the Cromer Company was the seller of mo
bile home and land packages. The principal owner
of the Cromer Company was A. Eugene Cromer
(Cromer). Melissa Caldwell (Caldwell) was an em
ployee of the Cromer Company and was often the
principal point of contact between the Cromer
Company and the Firm.

On one occasion, respondent closed loans for
the Cromer Company where the HUD-1 Settlement
Statement reflected that certain sums of money on
line 303 "cash from borrower" had been paid by
borrowers at closing when the balance sheet
(in-house scheduleof incomingfunds and disburse
ments) and the Firm's class report (trust account
ledger) showed no money had been received into
the Firm's trust account. On this occasion, no

money was received by the Firm from borrowers.

Respondent represents that Cromer or a repres
entative of his company advised the Firm staff,
probably to the paralegal, that this amount had been
paid by borrowers directly to the *330 Cromer
Company. Thereafter, the paralegal made pen and
ink changes to the balance sheet to reflect that no
"cash from borrowers" was received at closing and
reduced the "cash to seller" on line 603 of the

HUD-1 statement by the amount,of the "cash from
borrower" shown on line 303. However, the

HUD-1 form submitted to the lenders were not

amended and continued to show an amount of "cash

Page 3

"POC" (a standard abbreviation for "paid outside of
closing"). The HUD-1 form contained the standard
statement signed by respondent to the effect "the
HUD-1 Settlement Statement which I have pre
pared is a true and accurate account of this transac
tion. I have caused the funds to be disbursed in ac

cordance with this statement."

FN1. In the lending business, this tech
nique is referred to as "shorting the seller."

On another occasion, respondent served as the
closing attorney for a transaction between the
Cromer Company as seller and Ms. Z as buyer. On
line 303, the HUD-1 statement showed "cash from

borrower" to be $5,211.50. However, on instruc

tions from the seller, pen and ink changes were
made to the balance sheet, deleting the amount of
"cash from borrower" on line 303 and reducing
"cash to seller" on line 603 by a like amount. No
corresponding change was made to the HUD-1
form which was sent to the lender and no "POC"

notation was made on line 303. The Firm's class re

port did not show "cash from borrower" deposited
into the Firm's trust account and, instead, showed

the amount of the "cash to seller" reduced by the
amount the HUD-1 form showed as "cash to bor

rower." This caused a variance in the information

given the lender in the HUD-1 form and the actual
disbursements from the Firm's trust account. The

HUD-1 form contained the standard attorney certi
fication as set forth above.

On two other occasions, respondent closed
transactions wherein the Firm's class report **905
showed the line 303 "cash from borrower" was paid

at closing by a check drawn on the Cromer Com:
pany account rather than by cash or a check from

the borrowers. This fact was not disclosed to the

lender. Respondent represents that a representative
of the Cromer Company told a Firm employee that
the "cash from borrowers" *331 in these two trans

actions had been paid directly by borrowers to the
Cromer Company.

from borrower" on line 303 and no notation of /Respondent is now informed and believes that
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the representations from the Cromer Company that
the amount "due from borrower" on these last three

occasions had been paid directly by borrowers to
the Cromer Company were false, that there was (at
least in most instances) no money paid from the
borrowers as represented on line 303 of the HUD-1
form and that Cromer's misrepresentations were in
furtherance of his scheme to sell mobile home and

land packages to borrowers without the borrowers
having to contribute any money to the transactions.
As a result, it now appears that the representations
made by respondent concerning the information on
lines 303 and 603 of the HUD-1 statements were

incorrect. The inaccurate report had the tendency to
cause lenders to believe that borrowers had invested

money in the transactions when, in fact, the bor
rowers had not, and caused the price of the package
to be inflated by the amounts shown on line 303 of
the HUD-1 form*!

Cromer and Caldwell were indicted in the

United States District Court in connection with one

or more transactions closed by the Firm where the
Cromer Company was the seller. An allegation in
Cromer's indictment states Cromer made false

statements concerning down payments (information
on line 202 of HUD-1 forms) and "cash from bor
rowers" (information on line 303 of HUD-1 forms).
Cromer pled guilty to one count of mail and wire
fraud in connection with these transactions and was

sentenced to eighteen months in prison. In his plea
agreement, Cromer admitted he had derived
between $5,000,000 and $10,000,000 in benefits

from his scheme.

ODC does not contend that either respondent or

his partner were aware of Cromer and Caldwell's

criminal activities or of the amount of the money

involved. Instead, ODC contends respondent's fail
ure to either amend line 303 and line 603 to reflect

"no cash from borrower" received by the Firm or to
place the notation "POC" by the line 303 data made
it possible for Cromer to engage in the criminal
activity stated in the Cromer indictment.

*332 In approximately twelve transactions in
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which the Cromer Company was the seller and the
Firm served as closing agent, borrowers made
claims or, in some cases, initiated litigation, against
the Firm. The Firm and/or respondent and his part
ner and their insurance carrier paid $2,500 per case
to settle the claims.

Stegall Entities Transactions
For many years, the Firm handled numerous

real estate transactions for several entities owned

and managed by Donald L. Stegall (Stegall). Re
spondent served as closing attorney in approxim
ately fourteen transactions where Stegall entities
were the sellers of mobile home and land packages.

In each of these fourteen transactions, the

HUD-1 statements and Firm balance sheets were

prepared by the Firm's paralegal based on informa
tion from contracts of sale, information in the

lender's loan closing instructions, and/or instruc
tions from Stegall employees, usually Teresa Ash-
more (Ashmore). In each of the transactions, both
line 303 on the HUD-1 statement and the balance

sheet would initially reflect amounts of money to
be paid by the borrower at closing. Prior to closing,
Ashmore would instruct the paralegal to make
changes, primarily reducing the amount of "cash
from borrower" to zero and making corresponding
reductions in "cash to seller" on line 603 and, in

other cases, directing other changes in disburse
ments to Stegall entities to cause the disbursements
to balance.

The changes made by the paralegal at Ash-
more's directions were not reflected on the HUD-1

forms which were sent to the lenders. In each of

these transactions, the HUD-1 statement contained

a certification signed by respondent, as settlement
agent, to the effect "the HUD-1 Settlement State
ment **906 which I have prepared is a true and ac
curate account of this transaction. I have caused the

funds to be disbursed in accordance with this state

ment." None of the fourteen settlement statements

contained the notation "POC" beside line 303 "cash

from borrower" even though this amount was not
received by the Firm. Accordingly, there was a
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variance in the information furnished to the lenders

on the HUD-1 statements and the actual disburse

ments made out of the Firm's *333 trust account in

connections with these transactions. Accordingly,
there was a variance in the information furnished to

the lenders on the HUD-1 statements and the actual

disbursements made out of the Firm's trust account

in connection with these transactions.

In six of the Stegall closings, addendums to the
HUD-1 statements were prepared by the Firm's
staff and executed by the parties. The effect of the
addendums was to reduce to writing the changes
which had been directed by Stegall employees, usu
ally Ashmore, and made to the balancesheet by the
paralegal. The addendums were not sent to the
lenders.

In one Stegall transaction, respondent closed
loans for Borrowers Y and Z. Because the transac

tion was insured by the Federal Housing Adminis
tration (FHA), an FHA Addendum was required.
The borrowers and seller signed certifications on
the FHA Addendum prepared by respondent stating
that there had not been any reimbursement for cash
down payments or closing costs not disclosed to the
lender. Respondent signed the certification on the
FHA required addendum that the HUD was "... a
true and accurate account of the funds that were (i)
received or (ii) paid outside of closing, and the
funds received have been or will be disbursed by
[respondent] as part of the settlement of this trans
action."

The HUD-1 statement sent by respondent to the
lender also contained the standard certification

signed by respondent as the settlement agent. The
HUD-1 statement sent to the lender showed

$2,987.86 "cash from borrower," however no cash

from the borrowers was received by respondent or
the Firm in connection with the transaction and the

amount actually paid to the seller was reduced by
the amount "due from borrower." As a result, there

was a variance in the information furnished the

lender on the HUD-1 statement and the FHA re

quired addendum and the actual disbursements
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made from the Firm's trust account and this, in turn,

caused respondent's certifications to be incorrect.
Similar transactions occurred in other FHA insured

loans closed by respondent where a Stegall entity
was the seller.

Many of the transactions handled by the Firm
for the Stegall entities were funded by Cendant
Mortgage Corporation (Cendant). Jeffrey L. Greene
(Greene) was Cendant's *334 local representative
and was the usual point of contact betweenthe Firm
and Cendant. Respondent was aware that Greene
was also the principal point of contact between the
Stegall entities and Cendant. Respondent knew
Greene approved financing for borrowers of mobile
home and land package sales made by Stegall entit
ies.

On or about June 4, 2001, respondent closed a
transaction where Greene was the borrower.

The transaction was not financed by Cendant. The
transaction was modified, not only to cause Greene
to be forgiven of "cash from borrower" as shown
on line 303 of the HUD-1 statement in the amount

of $18,147.43, but also to cause Greene to leave the

transaction with a check drawn on the Firm's trust

account as a "refund" in the amount of $3,000. This

change was directed by a Stegall representative to
the Firm's paralegal. The paralegal made pen and
ink notations on the balance sheet to reflect these

changes. An addendum to the HUD-1 statement
was prepared to reflect these changes and was
presented by respondent to the parties for their sig
natures at closing. The HUD-1 statement sent to the
lender does not mention a "refund" to Greene and

does not reflect the $18,147.83 "gift" from a Stegall
entity to Greene negating the "cash from borrower"
information on line 303. The addendum was not

furnished to the lender.

FN2. This was one of the fourteen transac

tions mentioned above.

**907 In another transaction, the HUD-1

statement sent to the lender shows "cash from bor

rower" in the amount of $2,038.12. There is no in-
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dication of a corresponding deposit in the Firm's
trust account. The HUD-1 statement sent to the

lender reflects a $43,750 deposit, but there is no re
cord of a deposit in that amount to the Firm's trust
account.

FN3. This was one of the fourteen transac

tions mentioned above.

In connection with this transaction, the Firm's
trust account reveals the deposit of loan proceeds of
$76,830.40 and deposit of a check "from buyer"
(drawn on a BB & T account) in the amount of
$37,500. Respondent knew the Stegall entities
banked with BB & T. There is a disbursement from

respondent's trust account to a Stegall entity in the
exact amount of $37,500 and a refund to Stegall in
dividually of $1,389. *335 Amounts due to the
Stegall entity are reduced on the balance sheet to
reflect the foregoing and to cause the balance sheet
and the corresponding disbursements from the trust
account to be in balance. The HUD-1 statement

sent to the lender was not amended to correspond to
the actual disbursements made out of the Firm's

trust account at the direction and/or approval of re
spondent. The HUD-1 statement contains no men
tionof either the $37,500 (either cominginto or go
ing out of the Firm's trust account) or Stegall, indi
vidually, receiving a refund or even being involved
in the transaction.

At some point, respondent became concerned
whether borrowers were making the "cash from
borrower" payments directly to the Stegall entities.
According, respondent began requiring presentation
of a cashier's check for the "cash for borrowers" at

the closing. In approximately thirteen transactions,
the cashier's checks were prepared by BB & T and
delivered by Stegall employees to respondent's
staff. Respondent is now informed and believes the
Stegall entities furnished most, if not all, of the
money to purchase the cashier's checks, but this

was not known by respondent until it came to light
during discovery in the Cendant case. See infra.

Greene was indicted. He pled guilty in the
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United States District Court to one count of wire

fraud and was sentenced to five years probationand
restitution in connection with fraudulent dealings
with Stegall and Ashmore to the detriment of Cend
ant and other lenders who purchased loans with in
flated property values. In his plea agreement,
Greene admitted deriving between $1,500.000 and
$2,500,000 from his scheme with Stegall and Ash
more.

With information available from criminal pro
ceedings and related civil litigation after the clos
ings, it now appears that the accommodations in the
foregoing transactions by Stegall entities to Greene
were in return for Greene inducing Cendant to
make loans on inflated mobile home and/or land

packages to borrowers who were buying from
Stegall entities. Respondent was unaware of Stegall
and Greene's arrangement concerning the Cendant
loans.

Stegall and Ashmore were also indicted in the
United States District Court in connection with de

frauding lenders in conspiracy with Greene. Stegall
Rled guilty to one count of wire *336 fraud and was

sentenced to eighteen months in prison. In his plea
agreement, Stegall admitted deriving $3,075,000
from the real estate transactions related to his plea.
One or more of the transactions mentioned in the

information to which Stegall pled guilty were
closed by the Firm.

As a result of the foregoing, Cendant initiated
litigation against the Firm. Cendant was paid
$750,000 as settlement on behalf of the Firm. Five

hundred and seventy five thousand dollars of this
amount was paid by the Firm's insurance carrier
and the remainder was paid by the Firm or respond
ent and his partner.

Additional Facts

ODC's investigation reveals respondent did not
receive any special financial benefit from the clos

ings investigated by ODC. All fees received are
shown on the Firm's class report; the fees appear to

be reasonable and customary for work of this type
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in Greenville.

ODC does not allege respondent deliberately
sought to assist Cromer, Caldwell, Stegall,**908
Ashmore, or Greene in criminal undertakings or
had knowledge of their criminal intent. However,
submitting HUD-1 Settlement Statements to lenders
which were at variance with receipts and disburse-
ments from the Firm's trust account enabled these

people to break the law. With the advantage of
hindsight and discovery of criminal activity, re
spondent now recognizes there were "red flags"
which should have alerted him that the Cromer

Company and the Stegall entities were seeking to
mislead lenders, particularly in closing transactions
where Stegall entities effectively gave money to
Greene who was originating loans from Cendant to
borrowers purchasing mobile home and land pack
ages from Stegall entities.

It now appears that in many of the mobile
home and land package transactions respondent
closed for the Cromer Company and the Stegall en
tities, borrowers paid no money into the transac
tions. Instead, these sellers were seeking to close
the transactions without the borrowers contributing

their own money as an inducement for borrowers to
close the transactions with their businesses. This in

formation was not known to respondent until after
the closing of all of these transactions.*337 Re
spondent represents that he was unaware of the
Stegall entities' duplicity concerning the use of
cashier's checks in thirteen closings.

LAW

[1] Respondent admits that by his misconduct
he has violated the following provisions of the
Rules of Professional Conduct, Rule 407, SCACR:

Rule 1.1 (lawyershall provide competent represent
ation to client); Rule 1.2(e) (when lawyer knows
client expects assistance not permitted by the Rules
of Professional Conduct or other law, lawyer shall
consult with the client regarding the relevant limita
tions on the lawyer's conduct); Rule 4.1(a) (in the
course of representing a client, lawyer shall not
knowingly make a false statement of material fact
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or law to a third person); Rule 4.1(b) (in the course
of representing a client, lawyer not fail to disclosea
material fact to a third person when disclosure is
necessary to avoid assistinga criminalor fraudulent
act by a client, unless disclosure is prohibited by
Rule 1.6); Rule 5.1(a) (partner in a law firm shall
make reasonable efforts to ensure that the firm has

in effect measures giving reasonable assurance that
all lawyers in the firm conform to the Rules of Pro
fessional Conduct); Rule 5.3(b) (with respect to a
nonlawyer employee, lawyer having direct super
visory authority over the nonlawyer shall make
reasonable efforts to ensure that the person's con
duct is compatible with professional obligations of
the lawyer); Rule 8.4(a) (lawyer shall not violate
Rules of Professional Conduct); Rule 8.4(b)
(lawyer shall not commit criminal act that reflects
adversely on lawyer's honesty, trustworthiness, or
fitness as a lawyer in other respects); Rule 8.4(d)
(lawyer shall not engage in conduct involving dis
honesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation); and
Rule 8.4(e) (lawyer shall not engage in conduct that
is prejudicial to administration of justice). In addi
tion, respondent admits his misconduct constitutes a
violation of Rule 7, RLDE, of Rule 413, SCACR,
specifically Rule 7(a)(1) (lawyer shall not violate
Rules of Professional Conduct or any other rules of
this jurisdiction regarding professional conduct of
lawyers). Rule 7(a)(4) (lawyer shall not be con
victed of crime of moral turpitude or serious
crime); and Rule 7(a)(5) (lawyer shall not engage in
conduct tending to pollute the administration of
justice or to bring the courts or the legal *338 pro
fession into disrepute or conduct demonstrating an
unfitness to practice law).

CONCLUSION

We accept the Agreement for Discipline by
Consent and definitely suspend respondent from the
practice of law for a six month period, retroactive
to the date of his interim suspension. Within fifteen
days of the date of this opinion, respondent shall
file an affidavit with the Clerk of Court showing
that he has complied with Rule 30, RLDE, Rule
413, SCACR.
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The Court is troubled by the recent number of
real estate transactions which have been the subject
of misleading, fraudulent, and/or criminal schemes.
Inaccurate HUD-1 Settlement Statements and other

closing documents contribute to these deceptive
activities.**909 Respondent's misconduct derives
principally from his inaccurate representations on
HUD-1 Settlement Statements. These misrepresent
ations have subjected respondent to both federal
criminal penalties and the current disciplinary ac
tion by this Court.

In addition to completing HUD-1 Settlement
Statements, attorneys prepare their own settlement
statements. These documents, too, must also cor

rectly reflect the underlying financial transaction by
the parties in order for the buyer, seller, and others
to have an accurate record of the transaction.

[2] [3] (4) According to the parties in this mat
ter, a large number of attorneys are not passing
closing funds through their trust accounts and, at
the same time, not identifying the funds as paid out
side of closing on closing documents. Not only
does this practice fail to accurately record the actu
al transaction for the buyer and seller, but it is mis
leading to lenders. In an attempt to eliminate this
and other deceptive practices, we emphasize that
costs and credits in connection with a real estate

transaction must be shown on the settlement state

ment and that the settlement statement must reflect

all amounts paid, by whom paid, and to whom paid.
Any charges or amounts paid outside of the closing
must be reflected as such on the settlement state-

ment (i.e., "POC"), For all funds exchanged during
the closing, the attorney must have a record of the
method of payment by the parties to the transaction,
as *339 well as an accounting of all receipts and
disbursements by the attorney. The attorney's re
cords must accurately reflect the transaction as
evidenced by the settlement statement unless there
is written documentation signed by all parties to the
transaction (including any lender) indicating that
funds were disbursed otherwise. Failure to comply
with these standards may subject attorneys to dis
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ciplinary action.

DEFINITE SUSPENSION.

TOAL, C.J., MOORE, WALLER, BURNETT and

PLEICONES, JJ., concur.

ORDER

Respondent was suspended on July 20, 2004,
for a period of six months, retroactive to December
4, 2003. He has now filed an affidavit requesting
reinstatement pursuant to Rule 32, of the Rules for
Lawyer Disciplinary Enforcement contained in
Rule 413, SCACR.

The request is granted and he is hereby rein
stated to the practice of law in this state.

JEAN H. TOAL, CHIEF JUSTICE.

BY /s/ Daniel E. Shearouse

Clerk

S.C.,2004.

In re Lathan

360 S.C. 326, 600 S.E.2d 902

END OF DOCUMENT
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Supreme Court of South Carolina.
In the Matter of Ronald F. BARBARE, Respond

ent.

No. 25843.

Submitted June 10,2004.

Decided July 20, 2004.
Order Granting Reinstatement July 27, 2004.

Background: In attorney disciplinary proceeding,
attorney and the Office of Disciplinary Counsel
entered into agreement for discipline by consent, in
which attorney admitted misconduct and consented
to a definite suspension for a period of not less than
four months nor more than 12 months.

Holdings: The SupremeCourtheld that:
(1) attorney's misconduct in submitting incorrect
settlement statements to lenders warranted suspen
sion from the practice of law for a six month peri
od;

(2) failure of attorney to reflect any charges or
amounts paid outside of the closing on settlement
statement may subject attorney to disciplinary ac
tion;

(3) failure of attorney to have an accounting of all
receipts and disbursements by attorney may subject
attorney to disciplinary action; and
(4) failure of attorney's records to accurately reflect
a real estate transaction as evidenced by the settle
ment statement may subject attorney to disciplinary
action.

Definite suspension.

West Headnotes

[1] Attorney and Client 45 €=^44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

Pagel

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

Attorney and Client 45 €=>59.13(3)

45 Attorney and Client
451The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k59.1 Punishment; Disposition

45k59.13 Suspension
45k59.13(2) Definite Suspension

45k59.13(3) k. In General. Most

Cited Cases

(Formerly 45k58)
Attorney's misconduct in connection with real

estate transactions, in submitting HUD-1 settlement
statements to lenders which were at variance with

receipts and disbursements from firm's trust ac
count, warranted suspension from the practice of
law for a six month period. Appellate Court Rule
407, Rules of Prof.Conduct, Rules 1.1, 1.2(e),
4.1(a. b). 5.1(a), 5.3(b), 8.4(a, b, d, e); Appellate
Court Rule 413, Lawyer Disciplinary Enforcement
Rule7(a)(1.4, 5).

[2] Attorney and Client 45 C=*44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

Failure of attorney, in connection with real es
tate transaction, to show costs and credits, to reflect

all amounts paid, by whom paid, and to whom paid,
and to reflect any charges or amounts paid outside
of the closing, on the settlement statement, may
subject attorney to disciplinary action.

[3] Attorney and Client 45 €=>44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
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451 The Office of Attorney
451(C) Discipline

45k37 Grounds for Discipline
45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

Failure of attorney, in connection with real es
tate transaction, to have a record of the method of

payment for all funds exchanged by the parties to
the transaction during the closing or to have an ac
counting of all receipts and disbursements by the
attorney may subject attorney to disciplinary action.

[4] Attorney and Client 45 €=^44(2)

45 Attorney and Client
451 The Office of Attorney

451(C) Discipline
45k37 Grounds for Discipline

45k44 Misconduct as to Client

45k44(2) k. Misappropriation and
Failure to Account. Most Cited Cases

Failure of attorney's records to accurately re
flect a real estate transaction as evidenced by the
settlement statement, unless there is written docu

mentation signed by all parties to the transaction
(including any lender) indicating that funds were
disbursed otherwise, may subject attorney to discip
linary action.

**382 *561 Henry B. Richardson, Jr., of Columbia,
for the Office of Disciplinary Counsel.

Elizabeth Van Doren Gray, of Sowell, Gray, Stepp
& Laffitte, L.L.C., of Columbia, for respondent.

*562 PER CURIAM:

In this attorney disciplinary matter, respondent
and the Office of Disciplinary Counsel (ODC) have
entered into an Agreement for Discipline by Con
sent pursuant to Rule 21, RLDE, Rule 413,
SCACR. In the agreement, respondent admits mis
conduct and consents to a definite suspension from
the practice of law for a period of not less than four
nor more than twelve months. We accept the agree
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ment and definitely suspend respondent from the
practice of law in this state for a six month period,
retroactive to **383 his interim suspension. The
facts, as set forth in the agreement, are as follows.

FACTS

Respondent was admitted to practice law in
South Carolina on November 5, 1976. He is a part
ner in the law firm of Lathan and Barbare (Firm)
with his partner Ray D. Lathan (Partner). Respond
ent and partner are the only two attorneys employed
by the Firm.

The Firm's primary practice is the closing of
real estate transactions. The Firm handles approx
imately 1400 to 1600 real estate closings per year.

On or about November 19, 2003, respondent
and his partner pled guilty before the United States
District Court for the District of South Carolina to

one count of violation 18 U.S.C. § 1010, a felony.
The information to which respondent pled guilty
provided that he falsely certified that he had re
ceived cash from borrowers in amounts reported on
HUD-1 Settlement Statements he prepared and sub
mitted to the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development when respondent did not
receive the cash.

Because of cooperation with federal authorities
into matters related to the information and to other

investigations, the United States Attorney made a
motion for downward departure. Both respondent
and his partner received favorable recommenda
tions in the pre-sentencing report submitted by the
United States Probation Department. Both respond
ent and his partner were sentenced to pay a fine of
$5,000 as final disposition of their pleas; both have
paid those fines.

*563Firm's GeneralProcedure for ClosingReal
Estate Transactions

The Firm's paralegal was the principal point of
contact between the Firm and the seller. The

paralegal reviewed the lender's instructions and the
contract of sale and prepared closing documents
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and a balance sheet showing incoming funds and
disbursements. Changes to the transaction were
conveyed by the seller to the paralegal who would
then make pen and ink changes on the Firm's in-
house balance sheet reflecting the changes directed
by the seller.

Another Firm employee then prepared checks
for disbursement in accordance with the balance

sheet, including any pen and ink changes prepared
by the paralegal. Thereafter, the employee prepared
a class report showing the disbursements made out
of the Firm's trust account in connection with each

transaction.

Respondent or his partner reviewed the various
closing documents, attended the closing with the
seller and borrower, and gave instructions to the
Firm staff for the conclusion of transactions. Re

spondent or his partner attended and supervised all
closings.

Generally, there were no direct communica
tions between the Firm and the borrowers prior to
closing. In general, neither respondent nor his part
ner had any communications with the seller con
cerning an individual transaction prior to closing.

Cromer Company Transactions
Respondent and his partner served as closing

attorneys in a number of real estate transactions
where the Cromer Company was the seller of mo
bile home and land packages. The principal owner
of the Cromer Company was A. Eugene Cromer
(Cromer). Melissa Caldwell (Caldwell) was an em
ployee of the Cromer Company and was often the
principal point of contact between the Cromer
Company and the Firm.

On approximately four occasions, respondent
closed loans for the Cromer Company where the
HUD-1 Settlement Statements reflected that certain

sums of money on line 303 "cash from borrower"
had been paid by borrowers at closing when *564
the balance sheet (in-house schedule of incoming
funds and disbursements) and the Firm's class re
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port (trust account ledger) showed no money had
been received into the Firm's trust account. On

these occasions, no money was received by the
Firm from borrowers.

Respondent represents that Cromer or a repres
entative of his company advised the Firm staff,
probably the paralegal, that this amount had been
paid by borrowers directly to the Cromer Company.
Thereafter, the **384 paralegal made pen and ink
changes to the balance sheet to reflect that no "cash
from borrowers" was received at closing and re
duced the "cash to seller" on line 603 of the HUD-1

statements by the amounlof the "cash from borrow
er" shown on line 303. However, the HUD-1

forms submitted to the lenders were not amended

and continued to show an amount of "cash from

borrower" on line 303 and no notation of "POC" (a
standard abbreviation for "paid outside of clos
ing"). The HUD-1 forms contained the standard
statement signed by respondent to the effect "the
HUD-1 Settlement Statement which I have pre
pared is a true and accurate account of this transac
tion. I have caused the funds to be disbursed in ac

cordance with this statement." The HUD-1 forms

were forwarded to the lenders as originally drafted,
without the pen and ink changes noted on the bal
ance sheets.

FN1. In the lending business, this tech
nique is referred to as "shorting the seller."

Respondent is now informed and believes that
the representations from the Cromer Company that
the amount "due from borrower" in these transac

tions occasions had been paid directly by borrowers
to the Cromer Company were false, that there was
(at least in most instances) no money paid from the
borrowers as represented on line 303 of the HUD-1
forms and that Cromer's misrepresentations were in
furtherance of his scheme to sell mobile home and

land packages to borrowers without the borrowers
having to contribute any money to the transactions.
As a result, it now appears that the representations
made by respondent concerning the information on
lines 303 and 603 of the HUD-1 statements were
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incorrect. The inaccurate report had the tendency to
cause lenders to believe that borrowers had invested

money in the transactions when, *565 in fact, the
borrowers had not, and caused the price of the
package to be inflated by the amounts shown on
line 303 of the HUD-1 forms.

Cromer and Caldwell were indicted in the

United States District Court in connection with one

or more transactions closed by the Firm where the
Cromer Company was the seller. An allegation in
Cromer's indictment states Cromer made false

statementsconcerning down payments (information
on line 202 of HUD-1 forms) and "cash from bor
rowers" (information on line 303 of HUD-1 forms).
Cromer pled guilty to one count of mail and wire
fraud in connection with these transactions and was

sentenced to eighteen months in prison. In his plea
agreement, Cromer admitted he had derived
between $5,000,000 and $10,000,000 in benefits

from his scheme.

ODC does not contend that either respondent or
his partner were aware of Cromer and Caldwell's
criminal activities or of the amount of the money
involved. Instead, ODC contends respondent's fail
ure to either amend line 303 and line 603 to reflect

"no cash from borrower" received by the Firm or to
place the notation "POC" by the line 303 data made
it possible for Cromer to engage in the criminal
activity stated in the Cromer indictment.

In approximately twelve transactions in which
the Cromer Company was the seller and the Firm
served as closing agent, borrowers made claims or,
in some cases, initiated litigation, against the Firm.
The Firm and/or respondent and his partner and
their insurance carrier paid $2,500 per case to settle
the claims.

Stegall Entities Transactions
For many years, the Firm handled numerous

real estate transactions for several entities owned

and managed by Donald L. Stegall (Stegall). Re
spondent served as closing attorney in approxim
ately nineteen transactions where Stegall entities
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were the sellers of mobile home and land packages.

In each of these nineteen transactions, the

HUD-1 statements and Firm balance sheets were

prepared by the Firm's paralegal based on informa
tion from contracts of sale, information in the

lender's loan closing instructions, and/or instruc-
tions*566 from Stegall employees, usually Teresa
Ashmore (Ashmore). In each of the transactions,
both line 303 on the HUD-1 statement and the bal

ance sheet would initially reflect amounts of money
to be paid by the borrower at closing. Prior to clos
ing, Ashmore would instruct the paralegal to make
changes, primarily reducing the **385 amount of
"cash from borrower" to zero and making corres
ponding reductions in "cash to seller" on line 603
and, in other cases, directing other changes in dis
bursements to Stegall entities to cause the disburse
ments to balance.

The changes made by the paralegal at Ash-
more's directions were not reflected on the HUD-1

forms which were sent to the lenders. In each of

these transactions, the HUD-1 statement contained

a certification signed by respondent, as settlement
agent, to the effect "the HUD-1 Settlement State
ment which I have prepared is a true and accurate
account of this transaction. I have caused the funds

to be disbursed in accordance with this statement."

None of the nineteen settlement statements con

tained the notation "POC" beside line 303 "cash

from borrower" even though this amount was not
received by the Firm. Accordingly, there was a
variance in the information furnished to the lenders

on the HUD-1 statements and the actual disburse

ments made out of the Firm's trust account in con

nection with these transactions.

In thirteen of the Stegall closings, addendums
to the HUD-1 statements were prepared by the
Firm's staff and executed by the parties. The effect
of the addendums was to reduce to writing the
changes which had been directed by Stegall em
ployees, usually Ashmore, and made to the balance
sheet by the paralegal. The addendums were not
sent to the lenders.
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In one Stegall transaction, respondent closed
loans for Borrower F. Because the transaction was

insured by the Federal Housing Administration
(FHA), an FHA Addendum was required. The bor
rower and seller signed certifications on the FHA
Addendum presented by respondent stating that
there had not been any reimbursement for any cash
down payment or closing costs not disclosed to the
lender. Respondent signed the certification on the
FHA required addendum that the HUD was "... a
true and accurate account of the funds that were (i)
received or (ii) paid outside of closing, and *567
the funds received have been or will be disbursed

by [respondent] as part of the settlement of this
transaction."

The HUD-1 statement sent by respondent to the
lender also contained the standard certification

signed by respondent as the settlement agent. The
HUD-1 statement sent to the lender showed

$6,955.67 "cash from borrower," however no cash

from borrower was received by respondent or the
Firm in connection with the transaction and the

amount actually paid to the seller was reduced by
the amount "due from borrower." As a result, there

was a variance in the information furnished the

lender on the HUD-1 statement and the FHA re

quired addendum and the actual disbursements,
made from the Firm's trust account and this, in turn,

caused respondents' certifications to be incorrect.

Many of the transactions handled by the Firm
for the Stegall entities were funded by Cendant
Mortgage Corporation (Cendant). Jeffrey L. Greene
(Greene) was Cendant's local representative and
was the usual point of contact between the Firm and
Cendant. Respondent was aware that Greene was
also the principal point of contact between the
Stegall entities and Cendant. Respondent knew
Greene approved financing for borrowers of mobile
home and land package sales made by Stegall entit-

ies- F/»p Tn^Adf.^
jTOn May 17, 2000, respondent closed a real es

tate transaction for Seller H to Buyer L involving
real property at 13 Hillside Circle in Greenville.
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Respondent knew that Buyer L was a former em
ployee of Stegall or a Stegall entity. The HUD-1
statement reflected the sales price as $55,000 and
the "cash from borrower" being $55,531.12.

The same day, respondent closed another trans
action where Buyer L sold the same property to
Greene. This second transaction was funded by a
lender other than Cendant. The HUD-1 statement in

this transaction reflected a sales price of $80,000
and "cash from borrower" (Greene) as $11,735.77.
An addendum to the settlement statement, signed
by respondent, stated "cash to seller" was reduced
by the exact amount of "cash from borrower."

According to the class report, the loan proceeds
from the lender in the second transaction were the

only funds received by respondent* *386 for both
transactions. A Firm check in the *568 amount of

$55,531,12-paid out of the second transaction-rep
resented the "cash from borrower" due in the first

transaction.

The above activities on May 17, 2000, are
known as a "flip transaction" where proceeds from
the second transaction are used to fund the initial

transaction. For the HUD-1 statement in the first

transaction to have been accurate, the cash from

borrower" should have been $0 and the $55,531.12

should have been shown under "amounts paid by or
on behalf of borrower" under a line in the 200

column of the HUD form.

For the HUD-1 statement in the second transac-

tion to have been accurate, the $55,531.12 and the

$11,735.77 (the amount the seller gave Greene)
should have been shown under "reduction in

amount due seller" under a line in the 500 column

of the HUD and the "cash to seller" reduced to

$11,987.24 which was the amount disbursed to

seller. On this HUD-1 form, the "cash from borrow
er" should have been shown as $0 because Greene

paid no cash at the closing.

The flip transaction allowed Greene to acquire
the property using only the proceeds from the loan
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notwithstanding the fact that the HUD-1 sent to the
lender indicated Greene had contributed $11,735.77

to the transaction. In effect, the seller (original
Buyer L) simply gave Greene $11,735.77^1

All of the foregoing resulted in the information
furnished to the lender in the second transaction to

be at variance with the disbursements actually made
from the Firm's trust account as reflected on the

class report. In addition, the lender was not
provided with a copy of the addendum to the settle
ment statement.

On January 5, 2001, respondent served as the
closing attorney in a transaction whereby Greene
purchased real property at 109 Pine Ridge Lane in
Greenville from a Stegall entity. The transaction
was financed by a lender other than Cendant.

The HUD-1 form reflects earnest money or a
deposit of $6,616.03 on line 201 and "cash from
borrower" of $5,954.13. Line 603 reflects "cash to

seller" of $79,683.97. However, respondent had the
parties sign an addendum showing "credit to buyer"
of $13,300, and a corresponding reduction of the
amount due seller, resulting in "cash due to buyer"
of *569 $7,345.87. The Firm's class report reflects
that the only deposit into the Firm's trust account in
connection with this transaction were the loan pro
ceeds. The class report shows a refund to Greene of
$7,345,87 (paid by a check in the amount of
$6,345.87 and the withholding of a $1,000 judg
ment lien). Consequently, Greene, the buyer, (who
is shown on the HUD-1 form as contributing
$5,954.13 to the transaction) received $7,345.87.
The HUD-1 form was submitted to the lender

without being amended to conform to the balance
sheet and actual disbursements. The addendum was

not submitted to the lender.

On January 30, 2001, Greene purchased real
property at 116 Blackbird Lane in Greenville. The
mobile home was purchased from LUV Homes and
the land from a Stegall entity. Respondent served as
the closing attorney. A lender other than Cendant
financed the transaction.
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The HUD-1 furnished to the lender reflects

"cash from borrower" on line 303 as $13,268.56
and "cash to seller" on line 603 as $84,700. The

sales price of the lot is shown on the HUD-1 form.

However, LUV Homes and respondent signed
an addendum that shows a credit to Greene as

"funds from seller" of $25,031.44, reducing the
"due seller" by a like amount, resulting in the "due
to borrower" to be $11,762.44. A second addendum

for the lot sale shows the sales price of the lot re
duced by a release fee, payoff, and closing costs.
The Firm's balance sheet and class report show a
disbursement to Greene of $11,762.44 and reflect

that the only deposit was for the loan proceeds. The
class report reflects a disbursement of $9,312.00 to
Twin Lakes, a Stegall entity, notwithstanding the
fact that this entity is not mentioned anywhere on
the HUD-1 form. This amount was shown on the

second addendum which accounted for the funds on

the lot sale.

**387 On January 2, 2001, respondent served
as the closing attorney in a transaction whereby
Sellers H and W sold property at 4008 Shady Grove
in Honea Path to Buyer B. The HUD furnished to
the lender, Cendant, shows $4,000 in earnest money
on line 201, "cash from borrowers" of $960.55, and

"cash to seller" of $11,261.53. However, the Firm's

file contains two letters addressed to respondent.
One of these *570 letters, signed by Sellers H and
W, states "... disburse all the net proceeds ... to ...
Buyer B omitting our names." The second letter ad
dressed to respondent is from Buyer B instructing
respondent "... disburse the net proceeds in the ap
proximate amount to [Greene] omitting my name."
Respondent did not furnish either of these letters to
Cendant. Contrary to the information on the HUD-1
furnished to Cendant as lender, the class report
shows respondent did not receive the $960.55 from
the borrower. The class report also shows a dis
bursement to Greene, notwithstanding the fact that
Greene's name appears nowhere on the HUD-1
form and that he has no apparent relationship to the
transaction.

© 2013Thomson Reuters. NoClaim to Orig. USGov. Works.



602 S.E.2d 382

360 S.C. 560,602 S.E.2d 382

(Cite as: 360 S.C. 560,602 S.E.2d 382)

At some point, respondent became concerned
whether borrowers were making the "cash from
borrower" payments directly to the Stegall entities.
Accordingly, respondent began requiring presenta
tion of a cashier's check for the "cash for borrow

ers" at closings. Respondent handled approximately
five transactions in which he required cashier's
checks. The cashier's checks were usually prepared
by BB & T (where respondent knew the Stegall en
tities banked) and delivered by Stegall employees
to respondent's staff. Respondent is now informed
and believes the Stegall entities furnished the
money to purchase the cashier's checks, but this
was not known by respondent until it came to light
during discovery in the Cendant case. See infra.

Greene was indicted. He pled guilty in the
United States District Court to one count of wire

fraud and was sentenced to five years probation and
restitution in connection with fraudulent dealings
with Stegall and Ashmore to the detriment of Cend
ant and other lenders who purchased loans with in
flated property values. In his plea agreement,
Greene admitted deriving between $1,500,000 and
$2,500,000 from his scheme with Stegall and Ash
more.

With information available from criminal pro
ceedings and related civil litigation after the clos
ings, it now appears that the accommodations in the
foregoing transactions by Stegall entities to Greene
were in return for Greene inducing Cendant to
make loans on inflated mobile home and/or land

packages to borrowers who were buying from
Stegall entities. Respondent*571 was unaware of
Stegall and Greene's arrangement concerning the
Cendant loans.

Stegall and Ashmore were also indicted in the
United States District Court in connection with de

frauding lenders in conspiracy with Greene. Stegall
pled guilty to one count of wire fraud and was sen
tenced to eighteen months in prison. In his plea
agreement, Stegall admitted deriving $3,075,000
from the real estate transactions related to his plea.
One or more of the transactions mentioned in the
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information to which Stegall pled guilty were
closed by the Firm.

As a result of the foregoing, Cendant initiated
litigation against the Firm. Cendant was paid
$750,000 as settlement on behalf of the Firm. Five

hundred and seventy five thousand dollars of this
amount was paid by the Firm's insurance carrier
and the remainder was paid by the Firm or respond
ent and his partner.

Additional Facts

ODC's investigation reveals respondent did not
receive any special financial benefit from the clos
ings investigated by ODC. All fees received are
shown on the Firm's class report; the fees appear to
be reasonable and customary for work of this type
in Greenville.

ODC does not allege respondent deliberately
sought to assist Cromer, Caldwell, Stegall, Ash
more, or Greene in criminal undertakings or had
knowledge of their criminal intent. However, sub
mitting HUD-1 Settlement Statements to lenders
which were at variance with receipts and disburse
ments from the Firm's trust account enabled these

people to break the law. With the advantage **388
of hindsight and discovery of criminal activity, re
spondent now recognizes there were "red flags"
which should have alerted him that the Cromer

Company and the Stegall entities were seeking to
mislead lenders, particularly in closing transactions
where Stegall entities effectively gave money to
Greene who was originating loans from Cendant to
borrowers purchasing mobile home and land pack
ages from Stegall entities.

It now appears that in many of the mobile
home and land package transactions respondent
closed for the Cromer Company and the Stegall en
tities, borrowers paid no money into *572 the trans
actions. Instead, these sellers were seeking to close
the transactions without the borrowers contributing
their own money as an inducement for borrowers to
close the transactions with their businesses. This in

formation was not known to respondent until after
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the closing of all of these transactions.

LAW

Respondent admits that by his misconduct he
has violated the following provisions of the Rules
of Professional Conduct, Rule 407, SCACR: Rule

1.1 (lawyer shall provide competent representation
to client); Rule 1.2(e) (when lawyer knows client
expects assistance not permitted by the Rules of
Professional Conduct or other law, lawyer shall
consult with the client regarding the relevant limita
tions on the lawyer's conduct); Rule 4.1(a) (in the
course of representing a client, lawyer shall not
knowingly make a false statement of material fact
or law to a third person); Rule 4.1(b) (in the course
of representing a client, lawyer not fail to disclose a
material fact to a third person when disclosure is
necessary to avoid assisting a criminal or fraudulent
act by a client, unless disclosure is prohibited by
Rule 1.6); Rule 5.1(a) (partner in a law firm shall
make reasonable efforts to ensure that the firm has

in effect measures giving reasonable assurance that
all lawyers in the firm conform to the Rules of Pro
fessional Conduct); Rule 5.3(b) (with respect to a
nonlawyer employee, lawyer having direct super
visory authority over the nonlawyer shall make
reasonable efforts to ensure that the person's con
duct is compatible with professional obligations of
the lawyer); Rule 8.4(a) (lawyer shall not violate
Rules of Professional Conduct); Rule 8.4(b)
(lawyer shall not commit criminal act that reflects
adversely on lawyer's honesty, trustworthiness, or
fitness as a lawyer in other respects); Rule 8.4(d)
(lawyer shall not engage in conduct involving dis
honesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation); and
Rule 8.4(e) (lawyer shall not engage in conduct that
is prejudicial to administration of justice). In addi
tion, respondent admits his misconduct constitutes a

violation of Rule 7, RLDE, of Rule 413, SCACR,

specifically Rule 7(a)(1) (lawyer shall not violate
Rules of Professional Conduct or any other rules of
this jurisdiction regarding professional conduct of
lawyers), Rule 7(a)(4) (lawyer shall not be con
victed of *573 crime of moral turpitude or serious
crime); andRule 7(a)(5) (lawyer shall not engage in
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conduct tending to pollute the administration of
justice or to bring the courts or the legal profession
into disrepute or conduct demonstrating an unfit
ness to practice law).

CONCLUSION

[1] We accept the Agreement for Discipline by
Consent and definitelysuspend respondent from the
practice of law for a six month period, retroactive
to the date of his interim suspension. Within fifteen
days of the date of this opinion, respondent shall
file an affidavit with the Clerk of Court showing
that he has complied with Rule 30, RLDE, Rule
413, SCACR.

The Court is troubled by the recent number of
real estate transactions which have been the subject
of misleading, fraudulent, and/or criminal schemes.
Inaccurate HUD-1 Settlement Statements and other

closing documents contribute to these deceptive
activities. Respondent'smisconduct derives princip
ally from his inaccurate representations on HUD-1
Settlement Statements. These misrepresentations
have subjected respondent to both federal criminal
penalties and the current disciplinary action by this
Court.

In addition to completing HUD-1 Settlement
Statements, attorneys prepare their own settlement
statements. These documents, too, must also cor

rectly reflect the **389 underlying financial trans
action by the parties in order for the buyer, seller,
and others to have an accurate record of the trans

action.

[2I|3][4] According to the parties in this mat
ter, a large number of attorneys are not passing
closing funds through their trust accounts and, at
the same time, not identifying the funds as paid out
side of closing on closing documents. Not only
does this practice fail to accurately record the actu
al transaction for the buyer and seller, but it is mis
leading to lenders. In an attempt to eliminate this
and other deceptive practices, we emphasize that
costs and credits in connection with a real estate

transaction must be shown on the settlement state-
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ment and that the settlement statement must reflect

all amounts paid, by whom paid, and to whom paid.
Any charges *574 or amounts paid outside of the
closing must be reflected as such on the settlement
statement (i.e., "POC"). For all funds exchanged
during the closing, the attorney must have a record
of the method of payment by the parties to the
transaction, as well as an accounting of all receipts
and disbursements by the attorney. The attorney's
records must accurately reflect the transaction as
evidenced by the settlement statement unless there
is written documentation signed by all parties to the
transaction (including any lender) indicating that
funds were disbursed otherwise. Failure to comply
with these standards may subject attorneys to dis
ciplinary action.

DEFINITE SUSPENSION.

TOAL, C.J., MOORE, WALLER, BURNETT and

PLEICONES, JJ., concur.

ORDER

Respondent was suspended on July 20, 2004,
for a period of six months, retroactive to December
4, 2003. He has now filed an affidavit requesting
reinstatement pursuant to Rule 32, of the Rules for
Lawyer Disciplinary Enforcement contained in
Rule 413, SCACR.

The request is granted and he is hereby rein
stated to the practice of law in this state.

/s/ lean H. Toal. Chief Justice

/s/ Daniel E. Shearouse

Clerk

S.C.,2004.

In re Barbare

360 S.C. 560, 602 S.E.2d 382

END OF DOCUMENT
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Ethic Watch

*7 HUD-1 MISERY

John Freeman

Copyright© 2004by South Carolina Bar;John Freeman

The biggest risk facing the good lawyer is the bad client. Even work as seemingly routine and mundane as
residential real estate closings becomes tricky when clients are less than honest. Two Greenville law partners.
Ray Lathan and Ronald Barbare, ended up with some bad clients and paid a fearsome price: federal criminal
prosecution, license suspension and the temporary dismemberment of their law partnership, not to mention the
need to fork out large sums to settle civil claims.. See Matter of Lathan, 360 S.C. 326, 600 S.E.2d 902 (2004);
MatterofBarbare, 2004 WL 1661038 (S.C. 2004).

Lawyers Lathan and Barbare were law partners in a lawfirm handling 1,400to 1,600real estate closings per
year, around six every business day. Lawyers willing to handle so many loan closings run foreseeable risks,
among them paperwork glitches that leave mortgages unsatisfied, slipshod title work that leaves the lender
without the bargained-for lien protection and improper use of lay staff to do lawyer work, leading to unauthor
ized practice issues. None of these standard types of closing problems bit the two Greenville lawyers. What got
them were crooked clients.

As chronicled in the Court's decisions, both lawyers ended up being played for patsies by greedy property
sellersand a lender'scrookedemployee. Interfacing principally with the lawyers' paralegal, the bad guys worked
relentlessly as a criminal ring to cheat lenders outof cash. Crime paid well for the law firm's crooked clients, at
least temporarily. One, a real estate property seller, "admitted he had derived between $5,000,000 and
$10,000,000 in benefits from his scheme." Matter of Lathan, 600 S.E.2d at 905. Another property seller who
used the lawyers' legal services "admitted deriving $3,075,000 from the real estate transactions related to his
plea." Id. at 907. Another defendant, a dishonest employee for a lender, "admitted deriving between $1,500,000
and $2,500,000 from his scheme." Id.

Lawyers Lathan and Barbare missed out on the lush financial returns enjoyed by beneficiaries of the loan
closings theyprocessed. Said the Court: "ODC's investigation reveals respondent did not receive any special fin
ancial benefit from the closings investigated by ODC. All fees received are shown on the Firm's class report
[trust account ledger]; the fees appear to be reasonable and customary for work of this type in Greenville." Id.
Further, there was no allegation either lawyer "deliberately sought to assist [others] in criminal undertakings or
had knowledge of their criminal intent." Id. at 907-08. Not only did the lawyers not make excessive fees for
their efforts, they ended up paying hundreds of thousands of dollars to settle claims brought by bilked buyers
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and lenders. What led to the lawyers' criminal, civil and disciplinary woes was crooked real estate deals memori
alized with bad paperwork and, particularly, inaccurate HUD-Is.

Sometimes dangerous things come in small packages. The coral snake, for example, has a fearsome bite. So
,it is with HUD-1 Settlement Statements. Real estate lawyers fill out a humble, little (two-page) Form HUD-1 for
virtually every residential real estate closing. HUD-Is are important because they travel from the closing room
into the stream of commerce where, foreseeably, others, such as lenders, will rely on them. Real estate special
ists know a HUD-1 is probably the mosfimportant document in the closing package.

Because they are ubiquitous and seemingly simple and straight-for-ward, it has perhaps been, easy for clos
ing lawyers to overlook the crucial role HUD-Is play in the modern real estate financing market. After the Lath
an and Barbare cases, any South Carolina lawyer who views HUD-1 completion as a minor matter is begging

.for trouble. The HUD-1 hits nerve centers in every direction. It is relied on by borrowers, lenders, sellers and
participants in the secondary financing marketplace.

Today mortgages are bundled together and sold in the secondary market. It is critically important to those
who invest in that market that they be able to tell what it is that they are buying. HUD-Is are supposed to tell
anyone looking at them the true facts about the underlying real estate loan transaction, with a key item being the
money put into the transaction that came out of the borrower's pocket.

Naturally, lenders and purchasers of mortgage paper like seeing that the borrower has made a substantial
out-of-pocket contribution to the purchase. They know that the more money the borrower has in the property,
the lower the risk of default. They see the borrower's money as an equity cushion. A lawyer who passes on a
HUD-1 showingan illusoryor inflatedequitycushion has generated a fraudulent document. A federal statute, 18
U.S.C. § 1010, criminalizes publication of false HUD-ls. The HUD-1 Settlement Statements delivered to
lenders by Lathan and *8 Barbare showed such inflated cushions.The HUD-ls were false, and materially so.

Lathan and Barbare's woes stemmed from recording closings using two sets of books. One set, the HUD-ls,
showed substantial investments in property by the buyers. Line 303 of the HUD-1, reflecting the sum of money
provided from borrowers' pockets, was repeatedly pumped up and false. In each instance cited by the Court, the
line 303 disclosure was bogus because the borrower's contribution to the deal was either nonexistent or fraudu
lently inflated. This was a huge error. It translated into criminal prosecutions.

Missing from the HUD-ls was the notation POC ("paid outside closing") across from line 303, to flag for
anyone reading the HUD-1 that the buyer's alleged payment had not passed through the closing lawyer's hands.
Absent the POC notation, anyone looking at the lenders' HUD-ls would have been misled into believing that, at
closing, all the funds had passed through the lawyer's trust account. Worse, the lawyers' internal financial reports
on the transactions not only presented facts different from those shown on the HUD-ls delivered to lenders, in
two cases the internal reports, but not the lenders' HUD-ls, reflected cash paid outside the closing supposedly by
the borrowers, but coming in the form of checks drawn on the seller's account. This set of facts obviously cast
doubt on the legitimacy of the selling price for the piece of property against which the lender was making the
loan.

The lawyers' two sets of books thus each showeda materiallydifferent picture about the subject transactions'
substance. The more rosy, more upbeat picture was presented in the HUD-ls released into the stream of com
merce post-closing. This deception led to the temporary destruction of Lathan and Barbare's thriving real estate
practice.
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TheSupreme Court did not mince words. It wasdismayed by the respondent lawyers' conduct and,worse, by
evidence before it suggesting the respondent lawyers' behavior was not unusual for lawyers handling residential
real estate closings in South Carolina. In the mini-CLE lecture it delivered to all South Carolina real estate law
yers, the Court scolded:

According to the parties in this matter, a large number of attorneys are not passing closing funds
through their trust accounts and, at the same time, not identifying the funds as paid outside of closing on
closing documents. Notonlydoes thispractice fail to accurately record the actual transaction for the buy
er and seller, but it is misleading to lenders. In an attempt to eliminate this and other deceptive practices,
we emphasize that costs and credits in connection with a real estate transaction must be shown on the
[HUD-1] settlement statement and that the settlement statement must reflect all amounts paid, by whom
paid, and to whom paid. Any charges or amounts paid outside of the closing must be reflected as such on
the settlement statement (i.e., APOC"). For all funds exchanged during the closing, the attorney must
have a record of the method of payment by the parties to the transaction, as well as an accounting of all
receipts and disbursements by the attorney. The attorney's records must accurately reflect the transaction
as evidenced by thesettlement statement unless there is written documentation signed by all parties to the
transaction (including any lender) indicating that funds were disbursed otherwise. Failure to comply with
these standards may subject attorneys to disciplinary action.

Matter ofLathan, 600 S.E.2d at 909.

In the foregoing paragraph, which appears verbatim in both the Lathan and Barbare opinions, thecourt uses
theword "must" five times. Any timeour Supreme Court uses the word "must" five times in one paragraph in a
lawyer discipline case, there is some teaching goingon. Therewas here.

• Payments by the borrower outside of closing, whether covered by line 303, or line 201 (which cov
ers "deposit or earnest money" payments) must either be received and disbursed by the settlement agent
(i.e., the lawyer handling the closing), or retained by the real estate agent and disclosed appropriately on
the HUD-1 or marked POC on the HUD-1.

• If an internal addendum is used to reflect special facts modifying a transaction, then copies of the
modifying addendum need to be delivered to the lender.

• If property is being "flipped," that is, bought and immediately resold with the proceeds of the
second transaction being used to fund the first transaction, then the true facts concerning the second trans
action need to be disclosed so that the lender in the second transaction can see that the proceeds of the
loan are being used to fund the first transaction. One way of making thisdisclosure is by using the blank
lines from 204 to 209 and from 513 to 519 to make the economic reality of the transaction obvious to the
lender (andpossibly, the purchaser) who gets the HUD-1 on the second transaction.

• The HUD-1 needs to reflect the material dealings between the *9 borrowerand the lender. Funds
listedon the HUD-1 which do not pass through the lawyer's handsmust be markedPOC. However, a vari
ance between amounts shown on lines 303 and 603 and the cash amounts disbursed from the lawyer's
trust account can be indicative of deception.

An important consequence of the two disciplinary orders is the implicit instruction to the Bar that accurate
reporting in real estate transactions requires lawyers to ascertain the financial reality of the transaction, and to
accurately and consistently report it externally (via the HUD-1) and internally (in the law firm's own records of
the transaction).

The Court expressed particular concern over the need for lawyers to keep their eyes open to the ever-present
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risk their services are beingperverted or used abusively. In particular, Lathan and Barbare eachwerefaulted for
ignoring "red flags which should have alerted him that the [clients] were seeking to mislead lenders."

Implicit in the Court's ruling is a call for lawyers always to take into account that their actions in a matter
(such as preparing a HUD-1 or a title opinion) may have on third parties with whom the client is dealing. Expli
cit in the opinion was the Court's expression ofgenuine concern that, in its words, "a large number ofattorneys"
may be handling real estate closings ina way similar to that leading to the downfall ofattorneys Lathan and Bar-
bare. Any lawyer with a substantial real estate practice needs to study, learn and apply the lessons to be drawn
from those two closing lawyers'wrenching experiences.

16-NOVS.C.Law.7

END OF DOCUMENT
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OMB Approval No. 2502-0265

a Settlement Statement (HUD-1)

,. |P FHA 2. |p RH8 3. 6. File Number 7. Loan Number 8. Mortgage Insurance Case Number

C.Nota: This form Isfurnished togiveyoua statement ofactual settlement costs. Amounts paid toandbythesettlement agent areshown. Items marked
•(p.o.c)" werepaid outside theclosing; theyareshown herefor informational purposes andarenotincluded inthetotals.

O. Name & Address of Borrower E. Name & Address of Seller F. Name & Address of Lender

G. Property Location: H. Settlement Agent: I. Settlement Date:

Place of Settlement

100. Gross ArnountDus from Borrower

101. Contractsates price

102. Personal property

103.Settlement chargesto borrower (line 1400)
104.

105.

Adjustment for items paid by seller In advance

106. CHy/town taxes to

107. County taxes to

108. Assessments to

109.

110.

111.

112.

120.Gross Amount Due from Borrower

200. Amount Paid by or in Behalf of Borrower

201. Deposit or earnest money

202. Principal amount of new loan's)

203. Existing!oan(s)taken subject to

204.

205.

208.

207.

208.

209.

Adjustments for Items unpaid by seller

210. CHv/town taxes to

211. County taxes to

212. Assessments to

213.

214.

215.

216.

217.

218.

219.

220. Total Paid by/Tor Borrower

300. Cash at Settlement from/to Borrower

301. Gross amount due from borrower (line 120)

302. Less amounts paid by/forborrowerCine220) ( )

303. Cash • Prom • To Borrower

mry of Seller's Transaction

400. Gross Amount Due to Seller

401. Contract sales price

402. Personal property

403.

404.

405.

Adjustment for Kernspaid by seller in advance

408. City/town taxes to

407. County taxes to

408. Assessments to

409.

410.

411.

412.

420. Gross Amount Due to Seller

500. Reductions In Amount Due to seller

501. Excess deposit (see instructions)

502. Settlement charges to seller (fine 1400)

503. Existing loan(s) taken subject to

504. Payoff of firstmortgage loan

505. Payoff of second mortgage loan

508.

507.

508.

509.

Adjustments for Kernsunpaid by seller

510. City/town taxes to

511. County taxes to

512. Assessments to

513.

514.

515.

516.

517.

518.

519.

520. Total Reduction Amount Due Seller

600. Cash at Settlement to/from Seller

601. Gross amount due to seller (line 420)

602. Less reductions Inamounts due seller (Ene 520) ( )

603. Cash n To n From Seller

ThePublic Reporting Burden for thiscollection of information isestimated at35minutes perresponse for collecting, reviewing, andreporting thedata. Thisagency maynot
collect thisinformation, andyouarenotrequired to complete this form, unlessitdisplays o currenUy valid OMB control number. Noconfidentiality is assured: thisdisclosure
is mandatory.This is designed to providethe partiesto a RESPA covered transactionwithinformation duringthe settlement process.
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L. Settlement Charges

700. Total Real Estate Broker Fees
Paid From

Borrower's

Funds at

Settlement

Paid From

Seller's

Funds at

Settlement

Division of commission (line 700) as follows :

701. S to

702. S to

703. Commission paid at settlement

704.

800. Items Payable In Connection with Loan

801. Our origination charge S (fromGFE#1)

802. Your credit or charge (points) for the specific interest rate chosen S (from GFE #2)

803. Your adjusted origination charges (from GFE #A)

804. Appraisal fee to (from GFE #3)

805, Credit report to (from GFE #3)

806. Tax service to (from GFE #3)

807. Flood certification to (from GFE #3)

808.

809.

810.

811.

900. Items Required by Londer to be Paid in Advance

901. Dailyinterest charges from to @ S /day (from GFE *10)

902. Mortgage insurance premium for months to (from GFE #3)

903. Homeowner's insurance for years to (from GFE #11)

904.

1000. Reserves Deposited with Lender

1001. Initial deposit for your escrow account (from GFE #9)

1002. Homeowner's insurance months @ $ per month S

1003. Mortgage insurance months @ S per month $

1004. Property Taxes months @ S ptir month S

1C05 months @S per month S

1006. months @ S per month S

1007. Aggregate Adjustment -S

1100. Title Charges

1101. Title services and lender's title insurance (from GFE #4)

1102.Settlement or closing fee S

1103. Owner's title insurance (from GFE #5)

1104. Lender's title insurance S

1105. Lender's title policy limit S

1106. Owner's title policy limit S

1107.Agent's portionof the total title insurance premiumto S

1108, Underwriter's portion of the total title insurance premium to $

1109.

1110.

1111

1200. Government Recording and Transfer Charges

1201. Government recording charges (from GFE #7)

1202. DeedS Mortgages Release S

1203. Transfer taxes (from GFE #8)

1204. City/County tax/stamps Deed S Mortgage S

1205. State tax/stamps Deed S Mortgage S

1205

1300. Additional Settlement Charges

1301.Required servicesthatyoucan shopfor (from GFE#6)

1302. $

1303. $

1304.

1305.

1400. Total Settlement Charges (enter on lines 103, Section J and 502, Section K)

Previous edition are obsolete Page 2 of 3



Comparison of Good Faith Estimate (GFE] and HUD-1 Charrges

Charges That Cannot Increase HUD-1 Line Number

Our origination charge #801

Your credit or charge (points) for the specific interest rate chosen #802

Your adjusted origination charges #803

Transfer taxes #1203

Charges That In Total Cannot Increase More Than 10%

Government recording charges

Total

Increase between GFE and HUD-1 Charges

Charges That Can Change

Initial deposit for your escrow account #1001

Daily interest charges S /day #901

Homeowner's insurance #903

*

#

#

Loan Terms

Good Faith Estimate HUD-1

Good Faith Estimate HUD-1

$ or %

Good Faith Estimate HUD-1

Your initial loan amount is S

Your loan term is years

Your inilial interest rate is %

Your initial monthly amount owed for principal, interest, and any

mortgage insurance is

S includes

| | Principal

J Interest
"J Mortgage Insurance

Can your interest rate rise? ~| No [I [Yes, itcan rise toa maximum of %. The first change will beon
and can change again every after . Every change date, your

interest rate can increase or decrease by %. Over the life of the loan, your interest rate is

guaranteed to never be lower than % or higher than %.

Even if you make payments on time, can your loan balance rise? I^j No 11 "J Yes, it can rise to a maximum of S

Even if you make payments on time, can your monthly

amount owed for principal, interest, and mortgage insurance rise?

iJ No 11 | Yes, the first increase can be on and the monthly amount
owed can rise to S . The maximum it can ever rise to is S

Does your loan have a prepayment penalty? INo || | Yes, your maximum prepayment penalty isS

Does your loan have a balloon payment? } :\No [[ | Yes, you have a balloon payment ofS due in years
on

Total monthly amount owed including escrow account payments ~\ You donothavea monthly escrow payment foritems, suchas property taxesand
homeowner's insurance. You must pay these items directly yourself.

\ You haveanadditional monthly escrow payment ofS
that results in a total initial monthly amount owed of S . This includes

principal, interest, any mortagage insurance and any items checked below:

I | Property taxes J Homeowner's insurance
J Flood insurance

• •

Note: If you have any questions about the Settlement Charges and Loan Terms listed on this form, please contact your lender.
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Westlaw.

18U.S.C.A.§1010 Pagel

Effective: [See Text Amendments]

United States Code Annotated Currentness

Title 18. Crimes and Criminal Procedure (Refs & Annos)
"Si Part I. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

"^gj Chapter 47. Fraud and False Statements (Refs & Annos)
-t-t § 1010. Department of Housing and Urban Development and Federal Housing Administra
tion transactions

Whoever, for the purpose of obtaining any loan or advance of credit from any person, partnership, association,
or corporation with the intent that such loan or advance of credit shall be offered to or accepted by the Depart
ment of Housing and Urban Development for insurance, or for the purpose of obtaining any extension or renew
al of any loan, advance of credit, or mortgage insured by such Department, or the acceptance, release, or substi
tution of any security on such a loan, advance of credit, or for the purpose of influencing in any way the action
of such Department, makes, passes, utters, or publishes any statement, knowing the same to be false, or alters,
forges, or counterfeits any instrument, paper, or document, or utters, publishes, or passes as true any instrument,
paper, or document, knowing it to have been altered, forged, or counterfeited, or willfully overvalues any secur
ity, asset, or income, shall be fined under this title or imprisonednot more than two years, or both.

CREDIT(S)

(June 25, 1948, c. 645, 62 Stat. 751; May 25, 1967, Pub.L. 90-19, § 24(c), 81 Stat. 28; Sept. 13, 1994, Pub.L.
103-322, Title XXXIII, § 330016(1)(K), 108 Stat. 2147.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Revision Notes and Legislative Reports

1948 Acts. Based on § 1731(a) of Title 12, U.S.C., 1940 ed., Banks and Banking (June 27, 1934, c. 847, §
512(a), 48 Stat. 1265; Feb. 3, 1938, c. 13, § 9, 52 Stat. 24).

Reference to personscausingor procuring was omitted as unnecessary in view of definitionof "principal" in § 2
of this title.

"$5,000" was substituted for "$3,000" to make this section more consistent in its punishment provisions with
comparable sections. (See § 1008 of this title.)

Minor changes in phraseology were made.
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Westlaw,

24 C.F.R.§ 3500.8

Effective: August 10, 2011

Code of Federal Regulations Currentness
Title 24. Housing and Urban Development

Subtitle B. Regulations Relating to Housing
and Urban Development

*S Chapter XX. Office of Assistant Secretary
for Housing—Federal Housing Commission
er, Department of Housing and Urban Devel
opment

*S Part 3500. Real Estate Settlement Pro

cedures Act (Refs & Annos)
_• § 3500.8 Use of HUD-1 or HUD-1A
settlement statements.

(a) Use by settlement agent. The settlement agent
shall use the HUD-1 settlement statement in every
settlement involving a federally related mortgage
loan in which there is a borrower and a seller. For

transactions in which there is a borrower and no

seller, such as refinancing loans or subordinate lien
loans, the HUD-1 may be utilized by using the bor
rower's side of the HUD-1 statement. Alternatively,
the form HUD-1 A may be used for these transac
tions. The HUD-1 or HUD-1A may be modified as
permitted under this part. Either the HUD-1 or the
HUD-1 A, as appropriate, shall be used for every
RESPA-covered transaction, unless its use is spe

cifically exempted. The use of the HUD-1 or
HUD-1A is exempted for open-end lines of credit
(home-equity plans) covered by the Truth in Lend
ing Act and Regulation Z.

(b) Charges to be stated. The settlement agentfshallf
complete the HUD-1 or HUD-1 A, in accordance
with the instructions set forth in appendix A to this
part. The loan originator must transmit to the settle
ment agent all information necessary to complete
the HUD-1 or HUD-1A.

Pagel

(1) In general. The settlement agent shall state
the actual charges paid by the borrower and

sellef on the HUD-1, or by the borrower on the
HUD-1A. The settlement agent must separ
ately itemize each third party charge paid by
the borrower and seller. All origination ser
vices performed by or on behalf of the loan ori
ginator must be included in the loan originat
or's own charge. Administrative and processing
services related to title services must be in

cluded in the title underwriter's or title agent's
own charge. The amount stated on the HUD-1
or HUD-1 A for any itemized service cannot
exceed the amount actually received by the set
tlement service provider for that itemized ser
vice, unless the charge is an average charge in
accordance with paragraph (b)(2) of this sec
tion.

(2) Use of average charge.

(i) The average charge for a settlement service
shall be no more than the average amount paid
for a settlement service by one settlement ser
vice provider to another settlement service pro
vider on behalf of borrowers and sellers for a

particular class of transactions involving feder
ally related mortgage loans. The total amounts
paid by borrowers and sellers for a settlement
service based on the use of an average charge
may not exceed the total amounts paid to the
providers of that service for the particular class
of transactions.

(ii) The settlement service provider shall define
the particular class of transactions for purposes
of calculating the average charge as all transac
tions involving federally related mortgage
loans for:

(A) A period of time as determined by the
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settlement service provider, but not less
than 30 calendar days and not more than 6
months;

(B) A geographic area as determined by
the settlement service provider; and

(C) A type of loan as determined by the
settlement service provider.

(iii) A settlement service provider may use an
average charge in the same class of transac
tions for which the charge was calculated. If
the settlement service provider uses the average
charge for any transaction in the class, the set
tlement service provider must use the same av
erage charge in every transaction within that
class for which a GFE was provided.

(iv) The use of an average charge is not permit
ted for any settlement service if the charge for
the service is based on the loan amount or

property value. For example, an average charge
may not be used for transfer taxes, interest
charges, reserves or escrow, or any type of in
surance, including mortgage insurance, title in
surance, or hazard insurance.

(v) The settlement service provider must retain
all documentation used to calculate the average
charge for a particular class of transactions for
at least 3 years after any settlement for which
that average charge was used.

(c) Violations of section 4 of RESPA (12 U.S.C.
2603). A violation of any of the requirements of
this section will be deemed to be a violation of sec

tion 4 of RESPA. An inadvertent or technical error

in completing the HUD-1 or HUD-1 A shall not be
deemed a violation of section 4 of RESPA if a re

vised HUD-1 or HUD-1A is provided in accord
ance with the requirements of this section within 30

Page 2

calendar days after settlement.

[59 FR 6514, Feb. 10, 1994; 59 FR 14749, March
30, 1994; 59 FR 53901, Oct. 26, 1994; 60 FR 8816,

Feb. 15, 1995; 60 FR 24734, May 9, 1995; 61 FR
13233, March 26, 1996; 61 FR 29252, June 7,

1996; 61 FR 51782, Oct. 4. 1996; 61 FR 58476,

Nov. 15, 1996; 73 FR 68241, Nov. 17, 2008; 76 FR

40616, July 11,2011]

SOURCE: 57 FR 49607, Nov. 2, 1992; 60 FR 8816,

Feb. 15, 1995; 61 FR 10442, March 13, 1996; 61

FR 46510, Sept. 3, 1996; 61 FR 50219, Sept. 24,
1996; 61 FR 58475, Nov. 15, 1996; 63 FR 3236,

Jan. 21, 1998, unless otherwise noted.

AUTHORITY: 12 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.; 42 U.S.C.
3535(d).

24 C. F. R. § 3500.8, 24 CFR § 3500.8

Current through October 3, 2013; 78 FR 61761

© 2013 Thomson Reuters.

END OF DOCUMENT
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Westlaw.

24 C.F.R.Pt. 3500, App. A

Effective: August 10, 2011

Code of Federal Regulations Currentness
Title 24. Housing and Urban Development

Subtitle B. Regulations Relating to Housing
and Urban Development

*S Chapter XX. Office of Assistant Secretary
for Housing—Federal Housing Commission
er, Department of Housing and Urban Devel
opment

«! Part 3500. Real Estate Settlement Pro

cedures Act (Refs & Annos)
-• APPENDIX A TO PART

3500-INSTRUCTIONS FOR COM

PLETING HUD-1 AND HUD-la

SETTLEMENT STATEMENTS;

SAMPLE HUD-1 AND HUD-la

STATEMENTS

The following are instructions for completing the
HUD-1 settlement statement, required under sec
tion 4 of RESPA and 24 CFR part 3500 (Regulation
X) of the Department of Housing and Urban Devel
opment regulations. This form is to be used as a
statement of actual charges and adjustments paid by
the borrower and the seller, to be given to the

parties in connection with the settlement,. The in

structions for completion of the HUD-1 are primar
ily for the benefit of the settlement agents who pre
pare the statements and need not be transmitted to
the parties as an integral part of the HUD-1. There
is no objection to the use of the HUD-1 in transac
tions in which its use is not legally required. Refer
to the definitions section of HUD's regulations (24
CFR 3500.2) for specific definitions of many of the
terms that are used in these instructions.

General Instructions

Information and amounts may be filled in by type
writer, hand printing, computer printing, or any oth

Pagel

er method producing clear and legible results. Refer
to HUD's regulations (Regulation X) regarding
rules applicable to reproduction of the HUD-1 for
the purpose of including customary recitals and in
formation used locally in settlements; for example,
a breakdown of payoff figures, a breakdown of the
Borrower's total monthly mortgage payments,
check disbursements, a statement indicating receipt
of funds, applicable special stipulations between
Borrower and Seller, and the date funds are trans

ferred.

The settlement agent shall complete the HUD-1 to,
itemize all charges imposed upon the Borrower and
the Seller by the loan originator and all sales com-
missions, whether to be paid at settlement or out-

•r •

side of settlement, and any other charges which
either the Borrower or the Seller will pay at settle
ment. Charges for loan origination and title services
should not be itemized except as provided in these
instructions. For each separately identified settle
ment service in connection with the transaction, the

name of the person ultimately receiving the pay
ment must be shown together with the total amount
paid to such person. Items paid to and retained by a
loan originator are disclosed as required in the in
structions for lines in the 800-series of the HUD-1

(and for per diem interest, in the 900-series of the
HUD-1).

As a general rule, charges that are paid for by the
seller must be shown in the seller's column on page
2 of the HUD-1 (unless paid outside closing), and
charges that are paid for by the borrower must be
shown in the borrower's column (unless paid out
side closing). However, in order to promote com
parability between the charges on the GFE and the
charges on the HUD-1, if a seller pays for a charge
that was included on the GFE, the charge should be
listed in the borrower's column on page 2 of the
HUD-1. That charge should also be offset by list
ing a credit in that amount to the borrower on lines
204-209 on page 1 of the HUD-1, and by a charge
to the seller in lines 506-509 on page 1 of the
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HUD-1. If a loan originator (other than for no-cost
loans), real estate agent, other settlement service
provider, or other person pays for a charge that was
included on the GFE, the charge should be listed in
the borrower's column on page 2 of the HUD-1,
with an offsetting credit reported on page 1 of the
HUD-1, identifying the party paying the charge.

Charges paid outside of settlement by the borrower,
seller, loan originator, real estate agent, or any oth-

er person, must be included on the HUD-1 but
marked "P.O.C." for "Paid Outside of Closing"
(settlement) and must not be included in computing

J totals. However, indirect payments from a lender to
a mortgage broker may not be disclosed as P.O.C,
and must be included as a credit on Line 802.

P.O.C. items must not be placed in the Borrower or
Seller columns, but rather on the appropriate line
outside the columns. The settlement agent must in

dicate whether P.O.C. items are paid for by the
Borrower, Seller, or some other party by marking
the items paid for by whoever made the payment as
"£.O.C." with the party making the payment identi
fied in parentheses, such as "P.O.C. (borrower)" or
"P.O.C. (seller)".

In the case of "no cost" loans where "no cost" en

compasses third party fees as well as the upfront
payment to the loan originator, the third party ser
vices covered by the "no cost" provisions must be
itemized and listed in the borrower's column on the

HUD-1/1A with the charge for the third party ser
vice. These itemized charges must be offset with a
negative adjusted origination charge on Line 803
and recorded in the columns.

Blank lines are provided in section L for any addi
tional settlement charges. Blank lines are also
provided fox_a.dditional insertions in sections J and
K. The names of the recipients of the settlement
charges in section L and the names of the recipients
of adjustments described in section J or K should be
included on the blank lines.

Lines and columns in section J which relate to the

Borrower's transaction may be left blank on the

Page 2

copy of the HUD-1 which will be furnished to the
Seller. Lines and columns in section K which relate

to the Seller's transaction may be left blank on the
copy of the HUD-1 which will be furnished to the
Borrower.

Line Item Instructions

Instructions for completing the individual items on
the HUD-1 follow.

Section A. This section requires no entry of inform
ation.

Section B. Check appropriate loan type and com
plete the remaining items as applicable.

Section C. This section provides a notice regarding
settlement costs and requires no additional entry of
information.

Sections D and E. Fill in the names and current

mailing addresses and zip codes of the Borrower
and the Seller. Where there is more than one Bor

rower or Seller, the name and address of each one is

required. Use a supplementary page if needed to list
multiple Borrowers or Sellers.

Section F. Fill in the name, current mailing address
and zip code of the Lender.

Section G. The street address of the property being
sold should be listed. If there is no street address, a

brief legal description or other location of the prop
erty should be inserted. In all cases give the zip
code of the property.

Section H. Fill in name, address, zip code and tele
phone number of settlement agent, and address and
zip code of "place of settlement."

Section I. Fill in date of settlement.

Section J. Summary of Borrower's Transaction.
Line 101 is for the contract sales price of the prop
erty being sold, excluding the price of any items of
tangible personal property if Borrower and Seller
have agreed to a separate price for such items.
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Line 102 is for the sales price of any items of tan
gible personal property excluded from Line 101.
Personal property could include such items as car
pets, drapes, stoves, refrigerators, etc. What consti
tutes personal property varies from state to state.
Manufactured homes are not considered personal
property for this purpose.

Line 103 is used to record the total charges to Bor
rower detailed in Section L and totaled on Line

1400.

Lines 104 and 105 are for additional amounts owed

by the Borrower, such as charges that were not lis
ted on the GFE or items paid by the Seller prior to
settlement but reimbursed by the Borrower at settle
ment. For example, the balance in the Seller's re
serve account held in connection with an existing
loan, if assigned to the Borrower in a loan assump
tion case, will be entered here. These lines will also

be used when a tenant in the property being sold
has not yet paid the rent, which the Borrower will
collect, for a period of time prior to the settlement.
The lines will also be used to indicate the treatment

for any tenant security deposit. The Seller will be
credited on Lines 404-405.

Lines 106 through 112 are for items which the
Seller had paid in advance, and for which the Bor
rower must therefore reimburse the Seller. Ex

amples of items for which adjustments will be made
may include taxes and assessments paid in advance
for an entire year or other period, when settlement
occurs prior to the expiration of the year or other
period for which they were paid. Additional ex
amples include flood and hazard insurance premi
ums, if the Borrower is being substituted as an in
sured under the same policy; mortgage insurance in
loan assumption cases; planned unit development or
condominium association assessments paid in ad
vance; fuel or other supplies on hand, purchased by
the Seller, which the Borrower will use when Bor

rower takes possession of the property; and ground
rent paid in advance.

Line 120 is for the total of Lines 101 through 112.

Page 3

Line 201 is for any amount paid against the sales
price prior to settlement.

Line 202 is for the amount of the new loan made by
the Lender when a loan to finance construction of a

new structure constructed for sale is used as or con

verted to a loan to finance purchase. Line 202
should also be used for the amount of the first user

loan, when a loan to purchase a manufactured home
for resale is converted to a loan to finance purchase
by the first user. For other loans covered by 24 CFR
part 3500 (Regulation X) which finance construc
tion of a new structure or purchase of a manufac
tured home, list the sales price of the land on Line
104, the construction cost or purchase price of man
ufactured home on Line 105 (Line 101 would be
left blank in this instance) and amount of the loan
on Line 202. The remainder of the form should be

completed taking into account adjustments and
charges related to the temporary financing and per
manent financing and which are known at the date
of settlement.

Line 203 is used for cases in which the Borrower is

assuming or taking title subject to an existing loan
or lien on the property.

Lines 204-209 are used for other items paid by or
on behalf of the Borrower. Lines 204-209 should

be used to indicate any financing arrangements or
other new loan not listed in Line 202. For example,
if the Borrower is using a second mortgage or note
to finance part of the purchase price, whether from
the same lender, another lender or the Seller, insert
^———•— • i *

t)ie principal amount of the loan with a brief ex
planation on Lines 204-209. Lines 204-209 should
also be used where the Borrower receives a credit

from the Seller for closing costs, including seller-
paid GFE charges. They may also be used in cases
in which a Seller (typically a builder) is making an
"allowance" to the Borrower for items that the Bor

rower is to purchase separately.

Lines 210 through 219 are for items which have not
yet been paid, and which the Borrower is expected
to pay, but which are attributable in part to a period
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of time prior to the settlement. In jurisdictions in
which taxes are paid late in the tax year, most cases
will show the proration of taxes in these lines. Oth
er examples include utilities used but not paid for
by the Seller, rent collected in advance by the Seller
from a tenant for a period extending beyond the set
tlement date, and interest on loan assumptions.

Line 220 is for the total of Lines 201 through 219.

Lines 301 and 302 are summary lines for the Bor
rower. Enter total in Line 120 on Line 301. Enter

total in Line 220 on Line 302.

Line 303 must indicate either the cash required

from the Borrower at settlement (the usual case in a

purchase transaction), or cash payable to the Bor
rower at settlement (if, for example, the Borrower's
earnest money exceeds the Borrower's cash obliga

tions in the transaction or there is a cash-out refin
ance). Subtract Line 302 from Line 301 and enter

the amount of cash due to or from the Borrower at

settlement on Line 303. The appropriate box should
be checked. If the Borrower's earnest money is ap
plied toward the charge for a settlement service, the
amount so applied should not be included on Line
303 but instead should be shown on the appropriate
line for the settlement service, marked "P.O.C.

(Borrower)", and must not be included in comput
ing totals.

Section K. Summary of Seller's Transaction. In
structions for the use of Lines 101 and 102 and

104-112 above, apply also to Lines 401-412. Line
420 is for the total of Lines 401 through 412.

Line 501 is used if the Seller's real estate broker or

other party who is not the settlement agent has re
ceived and holds a deposit against the sales price
(earnest money) which exceeds the fee or commis
sion owed to that party. If that party will render the
excess deposit directly to the Seller, rather than
through the settlement agent, the amount of excess
deposit should be entered on Line 501 and the
amount of the total deposit (including commis
sions) should be entered on Line 201.
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Line 502 is used to record the total charges to the
Seller detailed in section L and totaled on Line

1400.

Line 503 is used if the Borrower is assuming or tak
ing title subject to existing liens which are to be de
ducted from sales price.

Lines 504 and 505 are used for the amounts

(including any accrued interest) of any first and/or
second loans which will be paid as part of the set
tlement.

Line 506 is used for deposits paid by the Borrower
to the Seller or other party who is not the settlement
agent. Enter the amount of the deposit in Line 201
on Line 506 unless Line 501 is used or the party
who is not the settlement agent transfers all or part
of the deposit to the settlement agent, in which case
the settlement agent will note in parentheses on
Line 507 the amount of the deposit that is being
disbursed as proceeds and enter in the column for
Line 506 the amount retained by the above-de
scribed party for settlement services. If the settle
ment agent holds the deposit, insert a note in Line
507 which indicates that the deposit is being dis
bursed as proceeds.

Lines 506 through 509 may be used to list addition
al liens which must be paid off through the settle

ment to clear title to the property. Other Seller ob
ligations should be shown on Lines 506-509, in
cluding charges that were disclosed on the GFE but
that are actually being paid for by the Seller. These
Lines may also be used to indicate funds to be held
by the settlement agent for the payment of either re
pairs, or water, fuel, or other utility bills that cannot
be prorated between the parties at settlement be
cause the amounts used by the Seller prior to settle
ment are not yet known. Subsequent disclosure of
the actual amount of these post-settlement items to
be paid from settlement funds is optional. Any
amounts entered on Lines 204-209 including Seller
financing arrangements should also be entered on
Lines 506-509.
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Instructions for the use of Lines 510 through 519
are the same as those for Lines 210 to 219 above.

Line 520 is for the total of Lines 501 through 519.

Lines 601 and 602 are summary lines for the Seller.
Enter the total in Line 420 on Line 601. Enter the

total in Line 520 on Line 602.

Line 603 must indicate either the cash required to
be paid to the Seller at settlement (the usual case in
a purchase transaction), or the cash payable by the
Seller at settlement. Subtract Line 602 from Line

601 and enter the amount of cash due to or from the

Seller at settlement on Line 603. The appropriate
box should be checked.

Section L. Settlement Charges.

Line 700 is used to enter the sales commission

charged by the sales agent or real estate broker.

Lines 701-702 are to be used to state the split of
the commission where the settlement agent dis
burses portions of the commission to two or more
sales agents or real estate brokers.

Line 703 is used to enter the amount of sales com

mission disbursed at settlement. If the sales agent
or real estate broker is retaining a part of the depos
it against the sales price (earnest money) to apply
towards the sales agent's or real estate broker's
commission, include in Line 703 only that part of
the commission being disbursed at settlement and
insert a note on Line 704 indicating the amount the
sales agent or real estate broker is retaining as a
"P.O.C." item.

Line 704 may be used for additional charges made
by the sales agent or real estate broker, or for a
sales commission charged to the Borrower, which
will be disbursed by the settlement agent.

Line 801 is used to record "Our origination
charge," which includes all charges received by the
loan originator, except any charge for the specific
interest rate chosen (points). This number must not
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be listed in either the buyer's or seller's column.
The amount shown in Line 801 must include any
amounts received for origination services, including
administrative and processing services, performed
by or on behalf of the loan originator.

Line 802 is used to record "Your credit or charge
(points) for the specific interest rate chosen," which
states the charge or credit adjustment as applied to
"Our origination charge," if applicable. This num
ber must not be listed in either column or shown on

page one of the HUD-1.

For a mortgage broker originating a loan in its own
name, the amount shown on Line 802 will be the

difference between the initial loan amount and the

total payment to the mortgage broker from the
lender. The total payment to the mortgage broker
will be the sum of the price paid for the loan by the
lender and any other payments to the mortgage
broker from the lender, including any payments
based on the loan amount or loan terms, and any
flat rate payments. For a mortgage broker originat
ing a loan in another entity's name, the amount
shown on Line 802 will be the sum of all payments
to the mortgage broker from the lender, including
any payments based on the loan amount or loan
terms, and any flat rate payments.

In either case, when the amount paid to the mort
gage broker exceeds the initial loan amount, there
is a credit to the borrower and it is entered as a neg
ative amount. When the initial loan amount exceeds

the amount paid to the mortgage broker, there is a
charge to the borrower and it is entered as a posit
ive amount. For a lender, the amount shown on

Line 802 may include any credit or charge (points)
to the Borrower.

Line 803 is used to record "Your adjusted origina
tion charges," which states the net amount of the
loan origination charges, the sum of the amounts
shown in Lines 801 and 802. This amount must be

listed in the columns as either a positive number
(for example, where the origination charge shown
in Line 801 exceeds any credit for the interest rate
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shown in Line 802 or where there is an origination
charge in Line 801 and a charge for the interest rate
(points) is shown on Line 802) or as a negative
number (for example, where the credit for the in
terest rate shown in Line 802 exceeds the origina
tion charges shown in Line 801).

In the case of "no cost" loans, where "no cost"

refers only to the loan originator's fees, the amounts
shown in Lines 801 and 802 should offset, so that

the charge shown on Line 803 is zero. Where "no
cost" includes third party settlement services, the
credit shown in Line 802 will more than offset the

amount shown in Line 801. The amount shown in

Line 803 will be a negative number to offset the
settlement charges paid indirectly through the loan
originator.

Lines 804-808 may be used to record each of the
"Required services that we select." Each settlement
service provider must be identified by name and the
amount paid recorded either inside the columns or
as paid to the provider outside closing ("P.O.C"),
as described in the General Instructions.

Line 804 is used to record the appraisal fee.

Line 805 is used to record the fee for all credit re

ports.

Line 806 is used to record the fee for any tax ser
vice.

Line 807 is used to record any flood certification
fee.

Lines 808 and additional sequentially numbered
lines, as needed, are used to record other third party
services required by the loan originator. These
Lines may also be used to record other required dis
closures from the loan originator. Any such disclos
ures must be listed outside the columns.

Lines 901-904. This series is used to record the

items which the Lender requires to be paid at the
time of settlement, but which are not necessarily
paid to the lender (e.g., FHA mortgage insurance
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premium), other than reserves collected by the
Lender and recorded in the 1000-series.

Line 901 is used if interest is collected at settlement

for a part of a month or other period between settle
ment and the date from which interest will be col

lected with the first regular monthly payment. Enter
that amount here and include the per diem charges.
If such interest is not collected until the first regular
monthly payment, no entry should be made on Line
901.

Line 902 is used for mortgage insurance premiums
due and payable at settlement, including any
monthly amounts due at settlement and any upfront
mortgage insurance premium, but not including any
reserves collected by the Lender and recorded in
the 1000-series. If a lump sum mortgage insurance
premium paid at settlement is included on Line 902,
a note should indicate that the premium is for the
life of the loan.

Line 903 is used for homeowner's insurance premi
ums that the Lender requires to be paid at the time
of settlement, except reserves collected by the
Lender and recorded in the 1000-series.

Lines 904 and additional sequentially numbered
lines are used to list additional items required by

the Lender (except for reserves collected by the
Lender and recorded in the 1000-series), including
premiums for flood or other insurance. These lines
are also used to list amounts paid at settlement for
insurance not required by the Lender.

Lines 1000-1007. This series is used for amounts

collected by the Lender from the Borrower and held
in an account for the future payment of the obliga
tions listed as they fall due. Include the time period
(number of months) and the monthly assessment. In
many jurisdictions this is referred to as an
"escrow", "impound", or "trust" account. In addi
tion to the property taxes and insurance listed, some
Lenders may require reserves for flood insurance,
condominium owners' association assessments, etc.

The amount in line 1001 must be listed in the
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columns, and the itemizations in lines 1002 through
1007 must be listed outside the columns.

After itemizing individual deposits in the 1000
series, the servicer shall make an adjustment based
on aggregate accounting. This adjustment equals
the difference between the deposit required under
aggregate accounting and the sum of the itemized
deposits. The computation steps for aggregate ac
counting are set out in 24 CFR § 3500.17(d). The
adjustment will always be a negative number or
zero (-0-), except for amounts due to rounding.
The settlement agent shall enter the aggregate ad
justment amount outside the columns on a final line
of the 1000 series of the HUD-1 or HUD-1 A state

ment. Appendix E to this part sets out an example
of aggregate analysis.

Lines 1100-1108. This series covers title charges
and charges by attorneys and closing or settlement
agents. The title charges include a variety of ser
vices performed by title companies or others, and
include fees directly related to the transfer of title
(title examination, title search, document prepara
tion), fees for title insurance, and fees for conduct
ing the closing. The legal charges include fees for
attorneys representing the lender, seller, or borrow
er, and any attorney preparing title work. The series
also includes any settlement, notary, and delivery
fees related to the services covered in this series.

Disbursements to third parties must be broken out
in the appropriate lines or in blank lines in the
series, and amounts paid to these third parties must
be shown outside of the columns if included in Line

1101. Charges not included in Line 1101 must be
listed in the columns.

Line 1101 is used to record the total for the cat

egory of "Title services and lender's title insur
ance." This amount must be listed in the columns.

Line 1102 is used to record the settlement or clos

ing fee.

Line 1103 is used to record the charges for the
owner's title insurance and related endorsements.
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This amount must be listed in the columns.

Line 1104 is used to record the lender's title insur

ance premium and related endorsements.

Line 1105 is used to record the amount of the

lender's title policy limit. This amount is recorded
outside of the columns.

Line 1106 is used to record the amount of the own

er's title policy limit. This amount is recorded out
side of the columns.

Line 1107 is used to record the amount of the total

title insurance premium, including endorsements,
that is retained by the title agent. This amount is re
corded outside of the columns.

Line 1108 used to record the amount of the total

title insurance premium, including endorsements,
that is retained by the title underwriter. This
amount is recorded outside of the columns.

Additional sequentially numbered lines in the
1100-series may be used to itemize title charges
paid to other third parties, as identified by name
and type of service provided.

Lines 1200-1206. This series covers government
recording and transfer charges. Charges paid by the
borrower must be listed in the columns as described

for lines 1201 and 1203, with itemizations shown

outside the columns. Any amounts that are charged
to the seller and that were not included on the Good

Faith Estimate must be listed in the columns.

Line 1201 is used to record the total "Government

recording charges," and the amount must be listed
in the columns.

Line 1202 is used to record, outside of the columns,

the itemized recording charges.

Line 1203 is used to record the transfer taxes, and

the amount must be listed in the columns.

Line 1204 is used to record, outside of the columns,

the amounts for local transfer taxes and stamps.
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Line 1205 is used to record, outside of the columns,

the amounts for State transfer taxes and stamps.

Line 1206 and additional sequentially numbered
lines may be used to record specific itemized third
party charges for government recording and trans
fer services, but the amounts must be listed outside

the columns.

Line 1301 and additional sequentially numbered
lines must be used to record required services that
the borrower can shop for, such as fees for survey,
pest inspection, or other similar inspections. These
lines may also be used to record additional itemized
settlement charges that are not included in a specif
ic category, such as fees for structural and environ
mental inspections; pre-sale inspections of heating,
plumbing or electrical equipment; or insurance or
warranty coverage. The amounts must be listed in
either the borrower's or seller's column.

Line 1400 must state the total settlement charges as
calculated by adding the amounts within each
column.

Page 3

Comparison of Good Faith Estimate (GFE) and
HUD-l/lA Charges

The HUD-1/1-A is a statement of actual charges
and adjustments. The comparison chart on page 3
of the HUD-1 must be prepared using the exact in
formation and amounts for the services that were

purchased or provided as part of the transaction, as
that information and those amounts are shown on

the GFE and in the HUD-1. If a service that was

listed on the GFE was not obtained in connection

with the transaction, pages 1 and 2 of the HUD-1
should not include any amount for that service, and
the estimate on the GFE of the charge for the ser
vice should not be included in any amounts shown
on the comparison chart on Page 3 of the HUD-1.
The comparison chart is comprised of three sec
tions: "Charges That Cannot Increase", "Charges
That Cannot Increase More Than 10%", and
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"Charges That Can Change".

"Charges That Cannot Increase". The amounts
shown in Blocks 1 and 2, in Line A, and in Block 8

on the borrower's GFE must be entered in the ap
propriate line in the Good Faith Estimate column.
The amounts shown on Lines 801, 802, 803 and

1203 of the HUD-1/1A must be entered in the cor

responding line in the HUD-1/1A column. The
HUD-1/1A column must include any amounts
shown on page 2 of the HUD-1 in the column as
paid for by the borrower, plus any amounts that are
shown as P.O.C by or on behalf of the borrower. If
there is a credit in Block 2 of the GFE or Line 802

of the HUD-1/1 A, the credit should be entered as a

negative number. [FN1]

[FN1] The official CFR appears to have in
advertently deleted this paragraph. See 73
FR 68204, 76 FR 40612.

"Charges That Cannot Increase More Than 10%".
A description of each charge included in Blocks 3
and 7 on the borrower's GFE must be entered on

separate lines in this section, with the amount
shown on the borrower's GFE for each charge
entered in the corresponding line in the Good Faith
Estimate column. For each charge included in
Blocks 4, 5 and 6 on the borrower's GFE for which

the loan originator selected the provider or for
which the borrower selected a provider identified
by the loan originator, a description must be
entered on a separate line in this section, with the
amount shown on the borrower's GFE for each

charge entered in the corresponding line in the
Good Faith Estimate column. The loan originator
must identify any third party settlement services for
which the borrower selected a provider other than
one identified by the loan originator so that the set
tlement agent can include those charges in the ap
propriate category. Additional lines may be added
if necessary. The amounts shown on the
HUD-1/1A for each line must be entered in the

HUD-l/lA column next to the corresponding
charge from the GFE, along with the appropriate
HUD-l/lA line number. The HUD-l/lA column
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must include any amounts shown on page 2 of the
HUD-1 in the column as paid for by the borrower,
plus any amounts that are shown as P.O.C. by or on
behalf of the borrower.

The amounts shown in the Good Faith Estimate and

HUD-l/lA columns for this section must be separ
ately totaled and entered in the designated line. If
the total for the HUD-l/lA column is greater than
the total for the Good Faith Estimate column, then

the amount of the increase must be entered both as

a dollar amount and as a percentage increase in the
appropriate line.

"Charges That Can Change". The amounts shown
in Blocks 9, 10 and 11 on the borrower's GFE must

be entered in the appropriate line in the Good Faith
Estimate column. Any third party settlement ser
vices for which the borrower selected a provider
other than one identified by the loan originator
must also be included in this section. The amounts

shown on the HUD-1/1A for each charge in this
section must be entered in the corresponding line in
the HUD-1/1A column, along with the appropriate
HUD-l/lA line number. The HUD-l/lA column

must include any amounts shown on page 2 of the
HUD-1 in the column as paid for by the borrower,
plus any amounts that are shown as P.O.C. by or on
behalf of the borrower. Additional lines may be ad
ded if necessary.

Loan Terms

This section must be completed in accordance with
the information and instructions provided by the
lender. The lender must provide this information in
a format that permits the settlement agent to simply
enter the necessary information in the appropriate
spaces, without the settlement agent having to refer
to the loan documents themselves.

Instructions for Completing HUD-1A

Note: The HUD-1A is an optional form that may
be used for refinancing and subordinate-lien feder
ally related mortgage loans, as well as for any other
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one-party transaction that does not involve the
transfer of title to residential real property. The
HUD-1 form may also be used for such transac
tions, by utilizing the borrower's side of the HUD-1
and following the relevant parts of the instructions
as set forth above. The use of either the HUD-1 or

HUD-1 A is not mandatory for open-end lines of
credit (home-equity plans), as long as the provi
sions of Regulation Z are followed.

Background

The HUD-1 A settlement statement is to be used as

a statement of actual charges and adjustments to be
given to the borrower at settlement, as defined in
this part. The instructions for completion of the
HUD-1 A are for the benefit of the settlement agent
who prepares the statement; the instructions are not
a part of the statement and need not be transmitted
to the borrower. There is no objection to using the
HUD-1 A in transactions in which it is not required,
and its use in open-end lines of credit transactions
(home-equity plans) is encouraged. It may not be
used as a substitute for a HUD-1 in any transaction
that has a seller.

Refer to the "definitions" section (§ 3500.2) of 24
CFR part 3500 (Regulation X) for specific defini
tions of terms used in these instructions.

General Instructions

Information and amounts may be filled in by type
writer, hand printing, computer printing, or any oth
er method producing clear and legible results. Refer
to 24 CFR 3500.9 regarding rules for reproduction
of the HUD-1A. Additional pages may be attached
to the HUD-1A for the inclusion of customary re
citals and information used locally for settlements
or if there are insufficient lines on the HUD-1A.

The settlement agent shall complete the HUD-1 A
in accordance with the instructions for the HUD-1

to the extent possible, including the instructions for
disclosing items paid outside closing and for no
cost loans.
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Blank lines are provided in Section L for any addi
tional settlement charges. Blank lines are also
provided in Section M for recipients of all or por
tions of the loan proceeds. The names of the recipi
ents of the settlement charges in Section L and the
names of the recipients of the loan proceeds in Sec
tion M should be set forth on the blank lines.

Line-Item Instructions

Pagel

The identification information at the top of the
HUD-1 A should be completed as follows:

The borrower's name and address is entered in the

space provided. If the property securing the loan is
different from the borrower's address, the address

or other location information on the property should
be entered in the space provided. The loan number
is the lender's identification number for the loan.

The settlement date is the date of settlement in ac

cordance with 24 CFR 3500.2, not the end of any
applicable rescission period. The name and address
of the lender should be entered in the space
provided.

Section L. Settlement Charges. This section of the
HUD-1 A is similar to Section L of the HUD-1,

with minor changes or omissions, including dele
tion of lines 700 through 704, relating to real estate
broker commissions. The instructions for Section L

in the HUD-1, should be followed insofar as pos
sible. Inapplicable charges should be ignored, as
should any instructions regarding seller items.

Line 1400 in the HUD-1 A is for the total settle

ment charges charged to the borrower. Enter this
total on line 1601. This total should include Section

L amounts from additional pages, if any are at
tached to this HUD-1A.

Section M. Disbursement to Others. This section is

used to list payees, other than the borrower, of all
or portions of the loan proceeds (including the
lender, if the loan is paying off a prior loan made
by the same lender), when the payee will be paid
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directly out of the settlement proceeds. It is not
used to list payees of settlement charges, nor to list
funds disbursed directly to the borrower, even if the
lender knows the borrower's intended use of the

funds.

For example, in a refinancing transaction, the loan
proceeds are used to pay off an existing loan. The
name of the lender for the loan being paid off and
the pay-off balance would be entered in Section M.
In a home improvement transaction when the pro
ceeds are to be paid to the home improvement con
tractor, the name of the contractor and the amount

paid to the contractor would be entered in Section
M. In a consolidation loan, or when part of the loan
proceeds is used to pay off other creditors, the
name of each creditor and the amount paid to that
creditor would be entered in Section M. If the pro
ceeds are to be given directly to the borrower and
the borrower will use the proceeds to pay off exist
ing obligations, this would not be reflected in Sec
tion M.

Section N. Net Settlement. Line 1600 normally sets
forth the principal amount of the loan as it appears
on the related note for this loan. In the event this

form is used for an open-ended home equity line
whose approved amount is greater than the initial
amount advanced at settlement, the amount shown

on Line 1600 will be the loan amount advanced at

settlement. Line 1601 is used for all settlement

charges that both are included in the totals for lines
1400 and 1602, and are not financed as part of the
principal amount of the loan. This is the amount
normally received by the lender from the borrower
at settlement, which would occur when some or all

of the settlement charges were paid in cash by the
borrower at settlement, instead of being financed as
part of the principal amount of the loan. Failure to
include any such amount in line 1601 will result in
an error in the amount calculated on line 1604.

Items paid outside of closing (P.O.C.) should not be
included in Line 1601.

Line 1602 is the total amount from line 1400.
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Line 1603 is the total amount from line 1520.

Line 1604 is the amount disbursed to the borrower.

This is determined by adding together the amounts
for lines 1600 and 1601, and then subtracting any

amounts listed on lines 1602 and 1603.

Page 2

This section of the HUD-1 A is similar to page 3 of
the HUD-1. The instructions for page 3 of the
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HUD-1, should be followed insofar as possible.
The HUD-l/lA Column should include any
amounts shown on page 1 of the HUD-1A in the
column as paid for by the borrower, plus any
amounts that are shown as P.O.C. by the borrower.
Inapplicable charges should be ignored.
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2U 1
214. |

715.

216.

217. ;

218. j
21°. '

mitoriMdbyyfortoitowtr

10ft Cwfi at tilthemrt aowrto tonower

301,Gcou«megntdu*(iombO(mwtrffr«120) I

302. Uss*RMwttt paidby/torbo«ow«fOino 220) j ( 1

MlCe* Qfrom f^tetorrowar

K*SwMMy ofSeMfv trentMtiM

eOfcOraaAmtsftOMtoSefcr

401. Contract hIm price

402 r«rtona1 property

401 :

404.

405.

AdiesbBants far Kates paid by sewse as advance
40».CIty/to«nt*»es to

407.County lam to

408.Attettmenu to i

49».

410 *
411. j
412. 1

420. (bimAmosnt Owe toSeller i
MO. Redaction* to Amount Out toSeter

SOI.&ora deport bee tastructioni)

S02.Settlement chwgttto teller (bn* 1400}

$01. f>teingloeft[s)tel*n subjectto i
50i.Peyor1ofbi*mong*oelo»n :

SOS. Psyo*cf second mortgageloan !

506. '

507.

SOS. i

so.

Adjustments ror ttoaei unpaid av aefle*'

510. Ctyftown t*xe« to

Sit. County taxes to

$l2.Astetsmena to

SIX i

514

SIS.

516.

517.

518.

519. \
I

400. Cask el Seftloaiaejt tOMtom Saber

6W.Cra*ttrMertduet»ielerffrie429) |
c4&Us*reductbtwin*atounidues4aer(fene$20) ' < )

40t.Ce* | |t> j [fromSeaW ;

The Public Reporting 8urden for thiscollection of information isestimated at3$minutes perresponse for collecting, reviewing, and
reporting thedata. This agency maynotcollect thisinformation, andyou are notrequired to complete thisform, unless itdisplays a
omertlyvaW OMBcontrol rwrrfcec Nocc*i^^^
a RESPA covered transactionwith informationduringthe settlement process.

Previous ♦**$©«*are obsolete Paget of 3 rWD-1
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24 C.F.R.Pt. 3500, App. A

L Settlement Charge*

TOO. «*al»eefC*«al>fk<elierPM« Paid From
Sorrower**
Fund* at

Settlement

Paid From
SeleA

Funds at
Seoleinant

r><ulmofcwnrirtitiOKfM70nasroVsiM*:

701 $ to

7uZS to

70) CmmlstkApaMatsetdeinwn

Tea.

800. ItOMArayeaoetoCenfleceea vnoiMeii

801. OurorigvutJoiKrurja f NiGftni
002.Wo^ordiarg»;po*nt*)lorri*fpotiSclnterea^ tmGKK)
801. IburadtuttedMtgra&wdMroas *Jo»<Jf*a»

a» Appraftelreeto JwnWEei)
aOS.Oedt repot to ikmCFfaS)

806.tB(if(vWo(O *wt\CfE*3)

807. Fbod<ertffc»tior» ftomOEKi)

80S

900. K»n»rSi»4ri<byUw<«rt»Pep«tdlnAaVi»«it»

90I. C5»fylr>t«reet«hif9H*cm to 0$ /day fromOFEei",
*tt fvtoraj»gebsurancepr*rr*irn br tncntfwto ftowOfgeja ^
VOJ. ltocnio»4>er*nwranca far yearsto pomCfE«i>
90*.

WOO. Huwei'o.ujrie.d .*.. tMtU
1001. inffaldepoeKfcr youtamow account a-vnGtt*))
tOOZHcsTMarawthttirsnc* mcndxOS peritkmdt S

1003. Mongegairuurexe mor**o*$ permonth }
1001. PitpenytaiaK mondwO$ permon* $

100S. monstsOi pet month }

(COS. rnnrr**ft* pe/men* t

1007. AagngaaAdJusenent •%

1100. TM* Otewjee
1101 TltbtcrticesarrfteKkmidtlrmirer^ ftua&Ceq

IIQlSettlirnsntorrJiMiRotoe S

imOtmrttfcbfcKwanc* ewnGf5»S)

ItOXLendertttietaurance $

110S LctdettUtfepefcybnkS

1106. Oner* tzxlw pcfcy fcn»%
110J.Ao*nrtpcifUon<^t»»tJ««>e^u*K*prwnlwn f
110lUndtrr#li«\portioncftr*wi^thW(mi«rK»pniri*^ * „ ,

1300. C«»wwiii*»»uitOV| eaalTrmMferCherge*
121)1. Oouarwremrecordrra charaa* enmrVEan

1202. Qeed* Mortgages Reteese* S
1201."Bandcrrwea ft**®***

120*. CrV/Cc^nyw/ttvpps OeedS Mottga^t
126S. SwetK/swmpi Dead*. Mortgage*

1205.

fSOOl AialtoaJ SattitWWrt CHaW^Tl

1301.SeoireodserrkMtrujtycw'Mnthopiei *<»<W«

1102. *

130J. »

130*

'305 .,,

14C«.*^*e«a)aMniCtv*f^CM««refillnMlO^
• Ill ||

Ptevous ecauont *o *lwo"oU- Page2ofl WCM
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24 CF.R. Pt. 3500, App. A

Comparison «♦* GoodFir* Eotawtte KSTO end HUO-1 Charge* QoodFatth Estimate KUO-1

CtiargMTTtttCiiMottacrMse KUai Unerfernber

OuroriojnarJoncharge * *>1
faoe&v4awfrte)tottni(&.®c'mt#*!iiM»vti>»in * 812

VMra.'^tfedongauaonchaipat * t(U
Transfertaw* '1203

Ouro^11urtb1btriOsBiKrtlrma*oMof«Thm10% Good Faith Etftnate HUM

Government recontnoctiarges »1201
r ' 0

^ . J --. .. . - .. i

.#

—-• - - - -,, — ~ —

_ .......*

Total

Wxjvateb^wtMOFEandKUO.ICrurgot i or %

Chargeal'satCanChange GoodFaftbEtfnute HUD-1

M3*!oteposftteyr^etoo«acc0URt *toai
Oauyfatterestdiaig** * »1 S May
HrxRecwterslnturanoa * «3

: " "" "' " *
:*

: .; . _ .. . «

Loan Terms

Ybur Mblban amount at i:

Ifeur loan term is yean

Ybwlrddel Merest rateb »

IfeurWbaJ monthlyamountowedfar principal, Merest, and
and anymortgagesnuranee»

$-. ! indude*

D Principal

• woeert
• htsrtgage Imuanee

Canyourinterestratedeal D No.Qlfevlicenrisatoaivvedrnimo'. ^Tl^ftrstoharrgevrtlbe

on .'..' "ar*lcandwvag****•"*• *nw
; _.Ewy<h»r^o^tKVCwW<i»*Mr»»c«r>»ww*eordea*aso

by ^O^ch»M«<rfthelwri,y>ir>M«e«(»teis9uarant»^toney«be

lawarthan .%orNghar*hwi! :*4

Event! youmabapayrnantson time, canyour banbauncorise? Q No. 0 Va», ilcanrfce toamanmumof$

Evan *youmaJui paymwt*ontime,canyourmonthy
amount owedkr principal interest, andrnorto^ir*irancerieo7

D KaDmK,dieristfcviea)«><^ar.t<een' aruJtttorrw^ amours
owed can riseto (

Thamaxirnumit can evtriuse lo n i

Ooao yourban haw aprepayment panatly7 D NaDvcs.yourrnjp»ino.rip«ep»>rr<>rilp«^nhyriS

Doesyourleanhaw abalcon payment? O r^.O>W.)Mrav*ab)noonpavmentof$' duoln
. . years on

Total monlhVamountcwedbdudng escrow account payment* DYc<jdorwruiwamf^Jy«^^r^tr«o»lo'l»<^,vxhaipropwr)r
uwcetamlrwmeowners tfrsurence. YoumustpaytheserMrMoVacrVyoureaB.

0%uraveanaoVs:tca«lmonrJ^eir30wpaynirWoft' . . j
thxr«^8matorJmltialtro>%smrjuntewodcf$ . . .Inklncrude*
prlncipsl, irwreB. arymortgaga hsuronceandany(terns chectedbelow
D Property taxes D Herneowntrt inmranea
D FbodJrttuanca- D . .

| Di. • D _
Note; tlyou have aryquestions about theSettlement Charge* and Usan Terms listed ondw form, please OMitact vswr lander

Previous edttlfn* »* ot'^ota wot
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24 CF.R. Pt. 3500, App. A

.<.*•""

Settlement Statement (HUD-1A)
Optional Form for Transactions without Sellers

OMeApf-ovalMo ZJQt40&

tUfrt end Address or fccctover: Hants and A&innZf£*n&tr.

Propnly Location: (•> dinVwnl(r«n above) SAMVnon: A/JHNC

plueeffettltmenc

Loan Nwtiwr. SttdttntntDatr:

LteMeraeatCtagM M. Bbbunenenttte Other*

WO. lt»ra«Peyab1«e>C<>eri«ctfo«»ettiUan )Wl

9>1. Curwtjaroavn^wr;** ftramGFEellt
807. toj'O*Slc«<r«g»poif*0Svti«H)e<»*lnww^r)i<iextw0>»\0rt»0t 1*0.

803.'AXKK%E>«4u^(l«N«<'u>fn (btmOTEA)

EM A>ip«Mf4*lo *omOf6*3l ISO*.

SOT. OwStrspMtB e-emCfttrj*

tX&feterfeeb pem<«»1t 1S04.

S07. fVyklotntScaom JremOfSaS

SB
ii&

900. hem* ««***<by l<fdwt»eVP*ldr.Ad»eece

901 Oafr• mma ftarytktn K. OS Of tf>««><jf€#|J, ijn*.

0f£ rAvt^igeinajniratpK'nun (or moreHto PonrGFEfll

VO) HimBomttkHaxjmv for y^inra JroniGfEelt) IS07

W*.

1000. llH«n**O^MltMlviml«>*er
iwa

KOI Miald*paMS3rya«**tr^kaMijnt tnnGrt**
HXC HransowieAirourono* worth* OS pvnoith » ifT/>

KOX Moa-jap(rowan* mofloOS permarth t
1004. PVopenytifw* morxhtOS pernunh t >SI0

SODS rronSisOf par/men* J

KCib. m»x!nt«S oerntantfi f
1S.11.

K07.Awt^KeArqurtrwr* *

1109. TltssCneroH
I51i

11M. TrteMrvlCMattierdPimWvisjaric* fromGfEs*

1102, SetiemamcrctMnglte S ISO.

1K& <><«•««l*lMU*nc* SwnCFJvS

110*.UnjVtbOainitnriM 1
IS'4

ins. IsntotnOapduvtiMt

1104 OmMVkUr-iMkfiiinlS
IMS

1107. AgstitspsrSc<>>Wtnatal4ittS*(<wuncic«pviiui< S
1108. Uro>rvMei\i>«rOwc'0>rUdtra*«t»r«ueryei>«<m 1 1S20. fetal Dittwrtad

{enter on line 1603)

1200. G**m*Ml*«»<timMiqjrtd1mUram}i.

IW. Cr>MTvn*misoc»>n9 dWiaM (temGtCi
KNMVttknMWW. Cawol rvtaaaaqet (tfaau* *

1X0 T-omrerteca* {*s»CfE*» IMA LcanAffajm J

IJ3*. Cir/Cojrr/ta<-'ttrasK Doad* Mongajef. MOt. FkaGei/Cho* kwn Barnvar S

I2C& Swwur/ttwpa D«ed$ Ue*»9*f ItSJ M*u TotalSetaVaeftrOwrgM
omtacq

s

13*

1JCO. AdoVttesil SatHarmntCfcajoaa
MCFlMaw TbtaKNuwrwraanb

•>Gth*nO*MlS3))
s

1301. Rs«l«lred»««»<o»rtorre(,.:*ntliet)fc« fnm6H*0 laW. Squats TotalUgtwwmam
tofer<«*c*

Oft» v>imO,« «*ary spptanM*
rt»tstopinnilN»eaftidtyla*t

s

.1 • « —

ISO. S

id. i

I3UJ

13(6

140S.%t*l$etd*a«fltC]u*g**tt«teren*wf»I.£«ionM

Tr»Public RvpoiKatg Btiidcri for tilts caRection of tnfernacwii isestimated at 5> minutes perretponse for coflectinj, reviewing, and
repotting thedata. This agency may notcollect this information, end y.»i iwr nor reoji'tmd to «»mpl«r* this form un!«sv Hdirplavs #
currently v«MC»^8 control number Nocunfidanriatty isassured; tWidisclosure a mandatory This isdesrgnw toprovide thepert*v to
a ftfcjfA covered transaction with mfeJmjiren durir*)the •MrtrJatTH'.t ptocets.

Previous edHrsRs «*« sfrsoiete Pjtjeli*:
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24 C.F.R.Pt. 3500,App. A

Com|>aritoo<rfC«xidPjS^rataTaa»(Ore) andHUD-1 Cha^ee GoodfeUft £*tftn*Jb*

CharflesTlsatCanfiotmcraate HUD-1 UwNumbar

CXrorlojnarVxi charge «80t

^woechordarp^^lr^fcrthe>c^ai<»t«n>gr»WdiM«n * 802

Tfeut adjusted Prigs-awn domes 1(03

ffantfa taxes •1200

Charge*ThatasTotalCannotiaoease MomThan10% Good Pal* CaOmete HUM

Governmentrecords? charges ¥ 1201

i' *

[ . _ _... ... a
t """ ~ ~ ' '" $

• „, i

r " """ a

: " . V . ...;_.. ".' . .'"". ~~7'T'" *
... . •

Total

Increasebetween OPEand HUD-1 Charge* $ or %

Charge*That CanChange Good PafthEtttnata HUD-1

raMaldepotitforycuretciowaccount «t001

Deityinterestcharge* i 901 J /day

Homeovrneisinsuranco * 401

: _ _.. ._„ #

: " - 0

*

Loan Terms

Mxir iruOalbanamount is v<' " • • • --• .

"feur lean term is :ye*rt

Mas inUel Marat*raWb *

Ybur irstialmonthlyamountowed farprinespal, interact,and

•andanyiivalgaiiea^turanrjeb
i

$i Sududas

QPrtnopel
QMerett
O Mrjncjegeinsuranos

CanyourMerest raterise? D rto.Q>«.««»rbe»»m»«T«jrn of. ,*.Thefm0San9ev.il be
on arvJcanchangaagainevery ' . after

"'• Every*arwjodata,yoi reneyt ate car.sxreesew decroate
ty % CMrtheH*c4theioan,yrjwirrei«arateno;iarameedtonevMoe

lowarthan %orhigherdan %.

B^earfyoumaa^pyitantacn&nsteanaourloartb^anrjtbe? Q No.ul'tet.acanrtsetaanisanuniolV . ..

Evantftou mate paymantioft time, canyourmoraMy
amount owed forprincipal. Interest,and mertgegalrtsuranoarbe?

CI No. 0>>». thefirtt increase can beon *ihjthemonlhly amour*
owodcanrooto*" T'

ThernafcirrwnttcaneverrfMiokS ... .

Ooa*yourloanhavea prepaymentpenalty? D No.Q Yes. your rroarrivm prepeyment penalty Is $

Doe* yourloanhaveabeJtocn payment? O NoQ'tfes.rcurovoabafloonpaymerrlofS . ducki
vnsrxon1 1.

tbtalmonMy amountowed Inducingaaoowaccountpayments
ts»«*and homeowner'sirouarwe.>bumust pa/ these tMnu riracd/ yourwB

n Vou have anadJOonaf monthly♦vso* paymentof$
that(eaJ(*inatotal(rdri«lmondiVarrwrjr«oM^off. .. .Thisincludes

D Property w^» D Hcmeowrwrs rsurance
D Flood tnuaartce D

• •

Note-IIyouhaveanyquettiont aboutthe SettlementCharjvt andLoanTetmtKileJ on thisfoim,pleasecontactyourkinder.

fYevtous edRiorc a*e ubsuleto Par/r2o(2 HUO-14
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